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PRESS: ?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . Good evening, everyone. I'd like to call the Budget and
Finance Committee meeting to order. Today is March 31 st , 2009. And the meeting is
being held at the Kihei Community and Aquatic Center. At this time, the Chair would
like to have your Member from South Maui, Mr. Nishiki, introduce the Committee
Members that are here this evening.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good evening. And I thank all of you for attending the
meeting here at the Kihei Center. First of all, I'd like to introduce the lady from
Upcountry, Gladys Baisa here.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . The other neighbor island representatives, all the way from
Kaho. . .excuse me . . . (laughter). . . Lanai . . .(laughter). . .
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . Sol Kaho`ohalahala.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . Then the man from Molokai, also our Council Chairman,
Danny Mateo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . From the. . .Waihee-Wailuku-Waikapu, to my far right,
Mike Victorino.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . From the Paia-Haiku. . .area. . .Michael Molina.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And our Budget Chairman from the Kahului area,
Chair Pontanilla. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Wayne.
ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (C.C. No. 09-59)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Tonight, we're here to. . .hear public testimony on the Mayor's
2010 Fiscal Year Budget. This is your time to provide the Committee with your
testimony in regards to the Budget. But before we go into. . .testimony, at this time, the
Chairman would like to have everyone turn off their cell phones or if you can put it on
the silent mode.
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NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Before we. . .start with public testimony, I just
wanna. . .ask your support. . .and we've gone, we've been going through the different
communities asking the support of the community in regards to our transient
accommodation tax. As you know, if you read the paper. . .you know the State
Legislature is taking a look at the possibility of suspending the transient accommodation
tax for six years for the three or four counties--Maui County, County of Kauai, County of
Hawaii, and the City and County of Honolulu. What it means for Maui County is that we
would lose 18 million dollars. And 18 million dollars is now projected in the Mayor's
2010 Budget proposal. So. . .we ask that you call your Representative or Senators and
tell 'em to defeat the bill that is being proposed in the Senate, as well as House Bill. We
got one bill that already identified, which has gone from the House to the Senate
side. . .and that's House Bill 1744. So if you could call your Representative and Senators
in regards to those bills and have those bills defeated, you know, we will, we would
appreciate that. And again, you know, it will impact total Maui County. So I encourage
each and every one to, of you to. . .contact your Representative and Senators. At this
time, the Chair would like to-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh-MR. BERTRAM, FROM THE AUDIENCE: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Bertram is here. I, I'm sorry, Mr. Bertram. So. . .Mr. Bertram is
your Representative from the South Maui area.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Mr. Bertram, you heard the plea from the County Council, and I'm
hoping you hear the plea from the people of South Maui. Thank you.
MR. BERTRAM, FROM THE AUDIENCE: I vote no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay, for those of you that providing public testimony, you have
three minutes to provide your testimony. When you come up, can you state your name
and the organization that you represent so that we can have accurate records when we
take our testimony from you? Once you're completed with. . .with your testimony, if you
could stay there for awhile, the Committee Members may have questions for you in
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regards to your testimony. So. . .the first person the Chair would like to call up for public
testimony is Chris Bakeman
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Bakeman approached the podium.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Staff?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Ms. Bakeman, before you start, I'd like to introduce the
Staff . .Staff that is supporting the Committee. To my far right, we do have
Arthur Suyama, as well as Michele Yoshimura. Both Arthur and Michele are Executive
Assistants to our Council Chair ,as well as your Budget Chair And we do have
Camille Sakamoto, as well as Scott Jensen from our Council Services. So with that-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Ms. Bakeman, please.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MS. BAKEMAN: . . . Thank you. Thanks for letting me go first. I'm Chris Bakeman, and
I'm. . .is this thing on?
. . . Hello?
. . . Oh, there we go. I'm Chris Bakeman, and thank you for letting me go first. I'm here
to support Keiki Kokua services.
. . . And it's about. . .three, four years ago I took the foster care family program to
become a foster parent. And within a year, I was able to foster this baby as a newborn
special needs--three months premature. And I fostered him for six months. And then I
was fortunate enough to adopt. So I was very lucky. Although he's two now
. . .(laughter). . . and it's still a blessing in disguise, I'm sure . . . (laughter). . . So I just
wanna give my support to Keiki Kokua services and hope that I think we're just here
asking for money to go to these programs . . .(laughter). . . And they're really good
programs . . .(laughter). . .
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. BAKEMAN: And if it wasn't for them, I wouldn't have him No, that's okay
. . . (laughter).. .

AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
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MS. BAKEMAN: . . .(laughter). . . I'm kind of used to it. And I just know there's a lot of kids
on this island that need help and there's a lot of kid organizations here asking for help.
And I used to work in the schools . . .
. . . and I would always tell the kids the kids come first. And that's what adults say.
And. . .and I think the County can show the kids that they do come first by giving them
the support they need--even in these economic hard times. It's I think it's more
important 'cause they're just as scared as anybody else and they don't know they're
gonna make it through. So, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, the next testifier is Tenajah Turner. I hope I got that name right.
NOTE: Pause while Master Turner approached the mic.

MASTER TURNER: . . . Aloha. . .Members and. . .excuse me--aloha, Council Members and
Chairman Pontanilla. My name is Elijah Turner, and as a member of the Focus Maui Nui
Youth Alliance, I humbly ask that you continue to. „support our program in the Fiscal
Year 2010. I've been a Youth Alliance member for three years now. I would like to
thank you for your support and. . .because with this program. . .in our monthly meetings,
we have been able to go to. . .this year we've been able to go to the Maui Arts and
Cultural Center and get a perspective of why it's important to preserve our culture and
keep it alive. We have gone to the agricultural festival at the Maui Tropical Plantation
and got an understanding about.. .farming in Hawaii. I was able to gain an
understanding that farming isn't just a career, it's a lifestyle and it's a vital part of our
local economy. One thing about the Youth Alliance is that we have a voice for our ideas
and where we wanna go. And I shared with Barry Takahashi that was interested in a
career as a radio personality, and he was able to get a meeting scheduled for Pacific
Radio Group which is gonna be happening this next week. Uh . . .
. . . in closing, with my. . .asking of you for support, I would like to say this quote by
Winston Churchill. . .it is: we make a living by what we get, and we make a life by what
we give. By supporting the Youth Alliance, you will give me and my fellow members
the opportunity to gain the experiences we need to become leaders for our community.
So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Elijah Turner, followed by
Edward Smith.
NOTE: Pause while Miss Turner approached the mic.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh,

that was Elijah. Sorry. . .Tenajah Turner?

MISS TURNER: . . . Aloha, Council Members and. . .Chairman Pontanilla. I remember you
from last week. My name is Tenajah Turner, and I've been a Maui. . .and. . .as a member
of Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance, I humbly ask that you continue to fund our program
in Fiscal Year 2010. I've been a part of Youth Alliance for two years and wanted to
share a few special experiences I would have had. . .I wouldn't have had if I wasn't in the
Youth Alliance program. The best part was, so far this year and last year, was going to
meet the Mayor. It was really fun. It opened my eyes to see how much each of our
businesses are knit together to make Maui Nui thrive and prosper. As a female, I felt
inspired when Governor Lingle. . .Linda Lingle was elected to office. After Mayor
Tavares. . .after meeting Mayor Tavares, I was even more inspired to explore my career
and interest in national security and health care. As a great.. .another great
inspire. . .experience was when we had our campstone camping trip on Lanai. We visited
the Four Seasons. . .Maalea [sic] Bay.
. . . And I saw how they worked with the biofuel company in recycling frying oil from the
kitchen. That was really neat. And by supporting Youth Alliance, it will give teens like
me chance. . .a chance to go behind the scenes and see how businesses work on a
day-to-day basis in Maui. . .in Maui. . .in Maui Nui. Youth Alliance has been a big part
of my life because it has taught me how each of our businesses are knit together to make
our community thrive and prosper. With many of our neighbors going. . .with many of
our neighbors losing jobs or getting a cut in pay, it opened my eyes to see how badly it is
effecting [sic] our businesses in which is our community. Thank you so much for
considering my testimony in support. . .in. . .in support of continuing funding for the
Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Mr. Edward Smith. . .followed by
Pablo Farate.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Smith approached the mic.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Oh, Pablo Frate.
MR. SMITH: . . . Aloha. Good evening, everybody.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. SMITH: My name is "Smithy" from Pukalani. I'm with Keolahou Church down in
South Kihei, 177 South Kihei Road. I'm here in regard to a public safety issue that
affects our church, our church members, the residents in the near community,
the--especially the seniors and the handicap people that try to get to church on their own.
And also. . .I believe this extends to others that live further on down the line. I would, I
would say like from Long [sic] Drug Store all the way to the stop light where North and
South Kihei. . .exist. The problem I'm talking about public safety--if you ever, you have
sand. . .sand dunes, this was, probably was created by the State, I believe in the past when
they tried to widen the highway. They abandoned, the left the sand in the sand dunes,
they dumped it your lap. This problem, some of this problems can be cleared up right
now. We get two pieces of equipment parked by the youth center almost 24 hours not
being used at all. That's a waste of taxpayers' money. The equipment can be used, first
of all, to get the sand on. . .remove all that sand from the pedestrian right-of-way. It's
also a legal sidewalk on the state, State and County laws. We made the law back in 1964
when I was in the Republican Party. Follow-up. . .can be whatever, whatever money the
County can get from the State through the 2010 Budget for improving the beach area,
retaining walls, planting trees, park benches or whatever. The people can enjoy that
section of the beach. It's a beautiful beach. They can enjoy that section of the beach just
as much as you enjoy your Kalama Park down here. We cannot be discriminate, having
no crosswalk for the kids to get hit on the blacktop roadway. This is a serious problem.
I've been after this problem for almost a year now and. . .after a while you just get burned
out. But I'm glad we have this Budget hearing tonight. So I appreciate if you can help,
help me, the church, and our community I try to walk that route. Took me over six
hours. This crutches get buried almost two feet in the sand on the pedestrian right-ofway. We have people. . .in our church, elderly women going to church with
walkers. . .struggling to get to church not even two blocks away from our church. That's,
that's, that's, that's a no-no. . .putting these people's lives in danger. You can hear the
blacktop roadway, you automatically lose your insurance. Whatever insurance you have,
you lose it. It's dropped automatically. The Police Department get 50 percent recovery
fees for whatever money they can save for the insurance company. This is a criminal
issue. So I'm asking you folks, I'm begging you guys--please help the taxpayers. That's
what our money is for. Public safety comes first. Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Smithy?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again, Smithy, for providing public testimony.
Pablo Frate, followed by Jeffrey Major.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Frate approached the mic.

MR. FRATE: . . . Good evening.
. . . Honorable Chair and Members of the Council. My name is Pablo Frate, and I'm
from Argentina, South America, representing the MEO Enlace Hispano. I am here
tonight to thank you for your continued support of MEO Enlace Hispano. And on behalf
of my family and this County community in Maui, I humbly as you to continue to fund
this much needed program. For many Spanish-speaking families, MEO Enlace Hispano
program have served as a bridge between the Hispanic Head Start programs and many
other agencies within the community. With the Enlace Hispano. . .Enlace Hispano
helps. . .they have been able to understand and participate more fully in their children's
preschool experience. Enlace Hispano gives them a voice and facilitates the
communication between other resources. The staff has really. . .has a really big case
load, but always tries to make time for each individual. And for that, we're very grateful.
For families attending WIC program, their help is in, is just unmeasurable. They
interpret every week at the Kihei and Lahaina WIC mobile centers. They translate forms
so that they'll be able to understand. And. . .they also help with filling diet(?) forms for
getting information, or get information from their English classes.
. . . For us, it's very important for the health crisis or emergency. . .in the event that they
need a. . .an interpret or an advocate for them. They also can. . .know that they can count
on Enlace Hispano. They also help us put together some résumés and complete
applications when we're applying for jobs. All these families come from different
backgrounds. . .uh. . .but they have one thing in common--and that's that they can count
in the MEO Enlace Hispano. I'm living proof. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much. Jeffrey Major, followed by
Kevin Hubin.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Major approached the podium.

MR. MAJOR: . . . Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. MAJOR: What I can tell you is what's right. And Maui. . .or MEO Business Development
Corp. is right. When I'm. . .in a situation in my life where I was a newly wed and. . .was
working hard in construction and had some physical problems and needed to really get
out on my own, I went to the banks. The banks. . .well, they said you have to have at
least three years in business already before you can get a loan. So how's that possible if I
don't even have a business of my own? MEO came at a time where it was difficult and it
was them that put together a program that was able to allow me to go beyond my
limitations. I support MEO's Business Development Corp. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much. Kevin Hubin?
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Hubin approached the mic.

MR. HUBIN: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Kevin Hubin. I speak before
you. . .with the BEST program under MEO, reintegration. I'd like to thank you for your
support and your funding. MEO. . .ME0 has helped me. . .helped me a lot reintegrating
back into the community. They, they gave me the support.
. . . And they gave me, they gave me the chance that nobody wanted. Somebody, actually
somebody when believe in me. And. . .the biggest, biggest help they did was . . .
. . . establishing me with. . .relationship with my children again. Due to my choices that I
made in my past. . .I haven't seen them for a while. And with this program that BEST has
to offer, and with your support . . .
. . . I, I look forward for you guys helping the next people after me. And hopefully get
funding next year. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Maile Yagis [sign
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. . . Malie Yagis [sign
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Yepis, Ms. Lindsey, and Ms. Fakatoumafi approached the mic.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Followed by Nicodemos Murrietta.
MS. YEPIS: . . . Aloha. Urn...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha.
MS. YEPIS: We have three of our parents here from MEO Head Start and. . .they just carne here
personally. They wanted to thank you folks for always supporting MEO Head Start and
MEO in whole, so. . .I'm gonna go ahead and let them just say a little thank you to you
guys . . .(laughter). . . It's okay.
MS. LINDSEY: . . . Hi, I just wanna say thank you and let you guys know that the Head Start
has really had a great impact on, you know, myself and all of the rest of the parents. And
just me alone, I would like to say thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Can you state your name?
MS. LINDSEY: I'm sorry. Shareta Lindsey.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. LINDSEY: 'Kay.
MS. FAKATOUMAFI: Hi, my name is Kalolaine Fakatoumafi, and I'm a Head Start parent.
Second year. And I wanna say thank you. Head Start's been there for me--`cause we just
moved here from Nevada two years ago, and they've been helping us through everything.
Without Head Start. . .I wouldn't afford to have my kids go to preschool. Thank you so
much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next?
MR. OZCAN: . . . Good evening. My name is Recep, and my boy Isaiah. And myself, I get a
business class in MEO. Right now my two children attend. . .ME0 Head Start program.
We are very happy to have them. They are supporting us. Please support them. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers this evening?
. . . Seeing none, thank you very much.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nicodemos Murrietta. . .followed by Shyla Kapoi.
NOTE: Pause while Master Murrietta approached the mic.

MASTER MURRIETTA: . . . Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for your time. My name is
Nicodemos Antone Murrietta. I live in Upcountry Maui and I am a freshman at King
Kaulike [sic] High School. I want to address what might happen if you cut MEO's
budget. Our food and drinks will be gone, which keeps us nourished and. . .and keeps us
high, keeps us hydrated. The siphon money will be gone as well, which teaches us how
to be responsible with money. The youth transportation is very important to us. It's how
we get around and help the communities on Maui. This February had one of the best
experiences of my life. I went to Oahu for a day to support the Kick Butts Day cause. I
wasn't expecting a lot, but it amazed me how dedicated these people are from all over
Hawaii to support tobacco usage. In MEO, I had many experience like this where people
are so dedicated it inspires you to do more.
. . . I have done so many things that I. . .have, that I would have never guessed I would
do. . .like make a loi, help stop invasive species, clean a loi, and help the kupunas in
Hana. . .and so much more. I have been to places so, that are so amazing you cannot
believe it. Like the serene tropical forest of Polipoli which suffer from. . .from pre,
previous fires; and. . .Honokowai which is one of the most surreal places I have ever
been. You can just feel ancient Hawaii. This was with all the money and support that
you have given us. This program has made me a better person. Before, I would
go. . .before, I would be home doing nothing. . .since my mom is a single parent and
works two jobs. She's very busy . . .(laughter). . . In the 7 th grade, I was getting caught
up in the wrong crowd, so I moved to a private school. But I was going to King
Kaulike [sic] High School the next year. So I went to MEO, expecting it to be boring
and boot-like camp. . .like boot camp. But Aunty Leslie makes, really cares about us and
all. . .and wants us all to do good in life. I've grown very close to Aunty Leslie. MEO
would not be MEO. . .without her, Martha, and the MEO youth service staff. So I ask
you from the bottom of my heart to not cut our budget. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much. By the way, did you learn how to
make luau?
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Did you learn how to make luau?
MASTER MURRIETTA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you . . .(laughter). . .
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Shyla Kapoi?
. . . Followed by Ana Garcia.
NOTE: Pause while Miss Kapoi approached the mic.

MISS KAPOI: . . . Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Budget Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you raise the mic?
MISS KAPOI: Oh. . .here?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, thanks.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
MISS KAPOI: Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Budget Committee.
My name is Shyla Kapoi, and I'm a sophomore at Baldwin High School. I am
15-years-old and I live in Kahului. I would like to ask for your continued support of
MEO youth service and MEO transportation. I've been at MEO Youth Bank for about
six years now. It's been really great because it kept me out of trouble and I've been to
places like Hana, Lahaina pali trail, Polipoli forest, and skills that I gained throughout
these years--our cook, cooking, diving, fishing, and job skills. We used to take care of
Kumu Garden, which was located Wailuku Fire Station and across Wells Park. Another
organization built a building there. Now we have a beautiful garden at our hale.
. . . Now, MEO leaders teach us how to be independent. We can be better citizens. Like,
I've learned about drugs, alcohol, and tobacco and the harmful effect it does to our, to
your bodies. I also attend two Girls' Circle conference in Oahu where I learned more
about my body and how I should respect my body. I also learned that it's really
important to go to school because you can get a job. . .a good job to buy stuff and take
care of your family.
. . . The one thing that I still remember when I was 12-years-old was. . .we went to
Molokai. I learned how to throw. . .throw a net, fish, and clean fish. We also cleaned a
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fishpond and the girls learned to dance hula. I would love to go again. So please don't
cut our funds so we will lose. . .we will lose out in all the important skills we will need to
make a better life for ourselves and Maui. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Thank you very much. Ana Garcia, followed by John Seeley.
MS. GARCIA: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Ana Garcia, and I have live in
Maui for 15 years. I'm here to speak on behalf of the Kihei Youth Center, the MEO bus
transportation, the MEO Head Start, MEO Enlace Hispano, and the County PALS. I
have five children through a. . .three of them attend regularly the Kihei Youth Center, and
every Friday evening they enjoy a free meal. And it's a very. . .safe and fun place for
them to be. I'd like to show my appreciation to the bus transportation services from
MEO because they. . .they give my kids a ride after. „they fmish high school, in Maui
High, after sports practices, they bring them back to Kihei. My two younger children
who are now 8 and 9 attended the MEO Head Start program when they were in
preschool. And they received an invaluable education which prepared them for, now that
they are in elementary school. Another MEO department I'd like to advocate for is the
Enlace Hispano. This is the only office on Maui that offers free services to the Hispanic
community, as Pablo mentioned before. Last and not least, I'd like to advocate for the
PALS program which is run by the County. I'm really sad to say that the PALS program
is no longer what it used to be. Um. . .when my 20-year-old attended, they would take
him to field trips. . .they would bring entertainment to the. . .to their, their site, or they
would take him places. They would give them free breakfast and lunch. They're not
getting any of it now. They're staying at Kalama Park under the pavilion, they don't go
anywhere, they stay there all day--from 7 to 5 and. . .the staff is really good. I mean,
they're doing whatever they can with the resources they have. But. . .really, really, you
need to put back the funds in that program. Thank you for supporting this program
and. . .please continue to put them in your budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um. . .Ms. Garcia?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Garcia?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ana?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you come back? Uh. . .you know, as you come up testify, could
you stay a moment because some of the Members may have questions.
MS. GARCIA: Okay, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Ms. Garcia...
MS. GARCIA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . you, you're saying about the PALS program-MS. GARCIA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Beyond. . .what they used to do and what they're doing
now, basically you're saying that they just stay at the pavilion all day. There is no meals?
MS. GARCIA: No meals provided. They're not going. . .to any field trips. Last. . .last session
during this. . .during the fall, you know, the winter break, if they went to a field trip, like
the. . Jike to Polo Beach, the parents would have, the parents would have to drive them-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. GARCIA: --`cause there, there was no bus. And now they're not taking them anywhere.
They've been there for a week now, for the, for this session and there's no bus, there's no
where to go. And when I drop . . .(end of tape, start 1B). . . and I don't remember my
older kids saying that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Did your older kids, when you're talking PALS, did they,
there wasn't these long intercessions, these three-week intercessions-MS. GARCIA: Summer, summer time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, summer time. Yeah, yeah, summer time.
MS. GARCIA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is this occurring also in the summer program or are you,
be, being specific to these different intercession periods?
MS. GARCIA: Well, what's happening is over time they've been losing and losing funds. And
they've been providing less and less things. Like before, they used to give them free
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meals, then they cut that out. They used to take them places, and they cut that out last
time. And. . .they used to bring entertainment, I remember, to the, to their sites and now
they're not doing that anymore. It's just, you know, I don't have a choice as a working
parent. I have to leave them there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. GARCIA: I cannot send them to YMCA because it costs 150 dollars a week per child. And
if I leave them at home, I'm not gonna find my house in one place, in one piece, so-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. GARCIA: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Ms. Garcia. Thank you-MS. GARCIA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for that information.
MS. GARCIA: --you're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just to let you know-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --we would, we, you know we'll be, we'll be on the Parks Department
on Thursday and. . .I guess we can ask 'em the question about the PALS program.
Mr. Seeley?
MR. SEELY: Good evening to Council. Thank you for being here. I am a dialysis patient. My
typical week is to get up at 5 o'clock in the morning, catch my MEO bus at, at 6 o'clock.
They then pickup another passenger, an elderly woman who has difficulty walking, and
they transport us both--I go to dialysis. And then they pick me up 11:30 and bring me
home. I'm speaking tonight because of the wonderful people they have. . .pardon
me. . .driving those buses. They are great. They, they worry about every one of us. I get
up in the morning, I go downstairs, they meet me to help me up the stairs 'cause I walk
real good if there's no stairs or hills And once I get onto the bus, they strap me in. Same
thing with this other woman These people are just so wonderful.
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NOTE: Pause while Mr. Seely regained his composure.

MR. SEELY: . . . I think they should be respected and honored. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you for being here
tonight. Rowena Buted?
. . . Followed by Melanie Alapai.
NOTE: Pause while Miss Buted approached the mic.

MISS BUTED: . . . Good evening. My name is Rowena Buted, and I am a junior from Maui
High School, and also the Best Buddies Chapter President, which is a topic I will testify
about. Best Buddies have really changed me. I learned about disabilities and other
things, but just being a part of this organization took me to another level. One of my
responsibilities as being a Chapter President was to attend a national leadership
conference for Best Buddies that was held in Indiana last summer. I was fortunate to go
with the other Best Buddies officers from Maui High School and Baldwin High School.
At this conference, we were taught how to run a Best Buddies Chapter. At this
conference, we also learned. . .we also listened to testimonies from Buddies around the
world. These testimonies really touched my heart. One Buddy talked about how it was
easier for her to swim the channel that was the width of Lake Tahoe than to make a
friend. This Buddy then explained that due to this organization, she was able to make
lots of friends and even just hang out with them. I have a Buddy with a disability.
But. . .I don't see him as a person with disability. I see him as my friend, just as I see any
other individual. I really enjoy talking to him He also gets really happy and excited
when I visit him during lunch period. Now that is priceless. Best Buddies is also
involved with the community. Currently, we are hosting a food drive for the Maui Food
Bank. For every three goods a student brings in, they receive a Best Buddies sticker that
looks like this.
. . . I would like to thank the Maui County Council for funding for Best Buddies. And I
would like to ask for their support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the testifier?
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Melanie Alapai?
. . . Followed by Hanalei Apalai.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Alapai approached the mic.

MS. M. ALAPAI: Aloha and good evening. My name is Melanie Alapai, I'm the Program
Director at the Kihei Youth Center. I just wanna say mahalo for supporting the Kihei
Youth Center. And it is so much of a need for programs that we have to keep our
communities going. With the economy, we've seen much more of a great need for these
programs. Also wanna thank, thank you for supporting MEO transportation. We've seen
parents that have now lost jobs, don't have transportation to even bring the kids. So
MEO's been much help. . .in servicing that. And you know, I always look at it that we
always like to think that it needs to come from home--the parents. You know, you expect
the kids to learn it from home. But. . .if they learn it from the kids, then why not? It
brings parents and kids together. And I just wanna say thank you very much. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hanalei Alapai?
. . . Before you speak. . .are the kids that's standing a part of your Kihei Youth Center?
NOTE: Ms. M. Alapai nodded "yes".

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Go ahead.
MASTER H. ALAPAI: Aloha o kou, Maui Council Members. My name is Hanalei Alapai, and
I am a member of the Kihei Youth Center. Mahalo for supporting us. Other than having
fun at the Youth Center, I have been able to learn more about other cultures as well as my
own. I also learned about the ocean, the land, and more importantly my community.
Some day, we will be leaders and I feel that it's important that we learn now. Kihei
Youth Center has given the youth opportunity to do that. So I ask for your continued
support and also to support MEO who have provided us with many great services.
Mahalo . . .(Hawaiian). . . Thank you and have a nice evening.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cari-Lyn Kulesza, Puona [sic] Hafoka .
NOTE: Pause while Miss Kulesza approached the mic.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oops . . .
MISS KULESZA: Whoa!
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
NOTE: Pause while the microphone was adjusted.

MISS KULESZA: . . . Thank you. Aloha, my. . .aloha Maui Council Members. My name is
Cari-Lyn Kulesza, and I am a youth member. Mahalo for supporting the Kihei Youth
Center for many years. And I would like you to keep supporting it so we will always
have a safe, educational, and fun place to stay while our parents are working. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Pouona [sic] Hofoka. . .followed by Derek Wilson.
NOTE: Pause while Miss Hofoka approached the mic.

MISS F. HAFOKA: . . . Aloha, Maui County Council Members. I would like to talk behalf of
my brother. Thank you for being here tonight and giving. . .and for giving me this
opportunity to speak in front of you. I'm reading this letter of appreciation on behalf of
my mother, Lehua Huddleston Hafoka, who is the Executive Director of the Kihei Youth
Center. My mom is sorry that she could not be here as she has the flu. Kihei Youth
Center would like to thank you for the funding that you have given us for the past years.
Your funding has allowed us to serve Maui's youth for over 26 years. With your, with
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your continued support, we look forward to another 26 years. My mom wants everyone
to remember that youth services on Maui are a vital part to a healthy community. It does
not matter if it's the Boys and Girls Club, Hana Youth Center, Paia Youth Center, or any
other youth organization--we must all support youth services. All youth services are a
very important part of providing a safe and neutering [sic] environment that. . .that parent
and guardians rely on. Youth centers, in general, play a vital role after school and during
vacation. For example, the Kihei Youth Center provides all kids a healthy. . .a healthy
lunch during a, during vacation as well as provides a free dinner on Friday night. The
Kihei Youth Center also provides after school homework assistance and a great art
lesson. . .class. The Kihei Youth Center provides many activities for everyone, but most
importantly, the Kihei Youth Center is a safe place for a kid. And that would not be
possible with, without you--the County of Maui. Also, the Kihei Youth Center would
like to thank you for supporting the MEO bus. Without the MEO bus services, many
members would not be able to attend our Youth Center on a daily basis. On behalf of the
Kihei Youth Center, we say mahalo nui loa, County of Maui, for your support. Aloha
. . . (Hawaiian). . . Fieme`a Hafoka and my brother, Pouono Hafoka.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Derek Wilson, followed by. . .Fieme` a Hafoka.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Wilson approached the mic.

MR. WILSON: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Derek Wilson. I'm here . . .
. . . I'm here representing the Maui Economic Opportunities. And I just want to say
that. . .their staff has been very helpful to me. And my situation is I lost my job last fall
after working there several years. And. . .after applying for unemployment, waited over
two months to receive my first check because of the number of people out of work
currently here on Maui. And I was at a point I didn't know what to do. I'm sure
everybody in this room at one time or another is gonna need help when their lives
financially or, you know, emotionally, physically. And I had never been in that situation
before. You know, and I'm sure no one in this room also wants to be homeless either.
You know, I've worked hard for many years and it came without any warning. And there
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I was without a job, without any income, had exhausted all my savings. And. . .was also
issued a. . .you know, eviction notice as well from my home, the only home I've really
known on Maui. And. . .it just so happens that. . .I guess just my perseverance and
my . . .
. . . willingness not to give up, I found out that there is a organization like MEO available
to help people like myself who have nowhere else to turn. . .to maintain my lifestyle, be
able to pay my bills and my utilities, and be able to eat. And namely, Gerry, who's
also here in attendance, George and who is not here know, my case worker.
They sat down with me and were able to actually put together a plan to help me stay in
my home and continue to look for employment and. . .which I am still doing currently.
And without this particular program. . .I don't know where I'd be right now. I hate to
even think about it. But I am, I am able to continue to look for work and maintain my
lifestyle and try and enjoy the. . .you know, everything Maui has to offer. And I just
would really like to as you to support that program because I'm sure at one time, the way
things are now a days--not just here on Maui, but everywhere--people will need help.
Where will they turn?
. . . Without no unemployment or without any account of really backing enough to cover
your mortgage or your bills or your kids' education. . .it's just a very sad situation. And
I'm glad Maui Economic Opportunity is there to help people like myself and anyone else
who's out there who's ever faced my situation. So I just wanted to state this on behalf
of . .their staff that have been helpful, very supportive. And. . .I don't know what I'd do
without them. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very
much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tina Ramsey. . .or Trini. . .Trina Ramsey.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Ramsey approached the mic.

MS. RAMSEY: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Trina Ramsey. And I am here with
Bob Novello, Mark Simon, and Ron Capanas. Stand up, guys. We are members of the
Board of Directors at the Maui Food Bank, and are here to respectfully ask for your

- 22 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 31, 2009 (South Maui District)

support in continuing a line item appropriation of 200,000 dollars in the County Budget
for Fiscal Year 2010.
. . . For the past several years, the Maui Food Bank has received a line item appropriation
of 200,000 dollars from the County and it has made a significant difference in our ability
to provide hunger relief to literally thousands in our community every month.
. . . The Maui Food Bank provides essential services to the County by being the only
nonprofit agency in Maui County that collects, warehouses, and distributes mass
quantities of both perishable and nonperishable food to the needy. The Maui Food Bank
coordinates service delivery of donated food to needy individuals and families through a
network of nearly 68 agencies and 103 programs that are members of the Food Bank.
We also work with agencies on Molokai and Lanai, shipping over 8,000 pounds to them
each month. These efforts provide a charitable safety net to literally thousands of Maui
County residents. . .who rely on them to make it through each month. During these tough
economic times, on an average month the need for food assistance has increased from
7,000 people each month to over 10,000 people. . .each month. That's a 30 percent
increase. The line item appropriation in the amount of 200,000 dollars assisted us to
enable people to gain access to over 1.2 million pounds of food at various distribution
points throughout the County during the past year. There were others that also provided
testimony about how they received some services from the Maui Food Bank. Just wanted
to share that this actually translates into roughly 4 million meals.
. . . Another part. . .part of the Maui Food Bank that is often overlooked is our
participation with emergency food assistance during and after a disaster. We continued
to be one of the County's primary safety net should a disaster strike. As you could
imagine for the past several years, the demand for emergency food has continued to
increase. And as a result, we have developed-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. RAMSEY: --many new initiatives . . .
. . . Okay. Did he say three minutes was up? Okay. Well-CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can fmish up.
MS. RAMSEY: Oh, okay. I'm almost done . . .(laughter). . . Um. . .just wanted to say that at
the Maui Food Bank, we believe that no one should go to bed hungry or make tough
decisions between having to pay for rent or buying food. We wanna ensure that all
persons in need, especially our seniors and our keiki--again, mentioned earlier, have their
basic nutrition needs met. And we assure you that we'll continue to put these good funds
to use. Um. . .so with that, I wanna thank you for your time and attention and allowing
me to have another couple sentences.

- 23 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 31, 2009 (South Maui District)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Trina, for being here this evening. Your
agency, in my opinion, is a lifeline. And I'm not surprised to hear the numbers that
you're giving us tonight because we know that a lot of people are without work. . .and we
know that a lot of people have had their income reduced greatly. And so more
percentage of everything they have is going to keep the roof over their heads. So they
have less money to buy food. My concern is with this 30 percent increase that you've
seen--which I think is gonna get bigger as the months go by here because every day I talk
to somebody who's lost a job, losing a job, or about to lose a job. And it's terrifying.
Um. . .with this 200,000 dollars, you received that in this fiscal year or. . .how long have
you had this 200,000 dollars . . . (laughter).. .
MS. RAMSEY: We received that appropriation last year. And we used that appropriation last
year to meet the needs that we discussed. And we're seeing this 30 percent increase.
And so we're being as creative as we can to continue to not only meet the existing need,
but also understanding that there is an increase. And that is why we are respectfully
requesting that we can continue receiving this line item appropriation going into 2010.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Now, with the current appropriation, are you able to meet the
needs or are you falling short?
. . . Do you have waiting lists of people who can't get food?
MS. RAMSEY: Well, we're certainly doing our very best to meet those needs and have been
trying to get as creative as possible to meet the needs. But without this appropriation, it
would be extremely difficult to, to move forward and continue meeting those needs.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think where I'm trying to go is I'm worried that 200,000 dollars
was okay this year, but I'm worried about what it'll be next year. And you know, we're
in a really tough situation as far as money goes, but I think that food is one of the
priorities. To me, a food, food and you know a place to stay, a roof over your head are
priorities for our people because we cannot have everybody living in the parks. It just
will not work. And we cannot have people going to bed hungry. So I'm very concerned
about those basic needs. So. . .you know, we'll be keeping a close eye on it as we go
through. But again like our Chair told you earlier this evening, we're very concerned
about having to make further reductions because of the loss of the transient. . .uh,
the. . .ugh, not "transient", the tax . . .(laughter). . . the tourist tax which the State might
decide to keep and then we'll be short 18 million. And then, what do we do? So. . .as we
go through, I'll be keeping a close eye and watching this food thing 'cause it's a, it's a
big worry for all of us. I know we're concerned. And I wanna thank you and your
organization for what you do.
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MS. RAMSEY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. RAMSEY: Thank you. We appreciate your support of our organization.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Solange Alzamoca [sic] .
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Williams approached the mic.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . And followed by Constance Williams. Thank you.
MS. WILLIAMS: . . . Good evening, County Council. . .members. Solange and I are. . .sorry,
my name is Constance Williams. We are registered nurses, and we work at Maui
Community College. First of all, we'd like to thank you for your support in the past. The
monies that you have granted us in the past have helped support two
nursing. . .faculty. . .one of which is myself . .also, Maui guru. . .technical person,
Eric. . .it also, the money also helped with rent. . .to the Maui Oral Health Center,
20 hours of tutors for the students, and supplies for the nursing and the
dental. . .programs. As you know, Maui. . .population is increasing and it's also getting
older.
. . . In addition to the age of Maui County. „members . . .(laughter). . . residents getting
older, so are the nursing staff. And. . .what our program helps to do is to add more
nursing students to Maui County, to the State of Hawaii. And we would like to thank you
for your past support and also hopefully the future support towards our program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers?
. . . Seeing none, thank you for being here.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . The next testifier is Lorena Kashiwamura .. .
. . . followed by Edwin Ginoza.
NOTE: Pause.
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MS. KASHIWAMURA: . . . Honorable Chair and Members of the Council. Thank you for the
opportunity to support the Enlace Hispano of the Maui Economic Opportunity. It is with
great honor to be with you and the citizens of Maui County. My name is
Lorena Kashiwamura. I am a Nutrition Assistant Breast Feeding Coordinator for the
Maui WIC program of the Maui District Health Office, Department of Health. I'm here
to express my support for the Enlace Hispano program of the Maui Economic
Opportunity, Incorporated. First of all, the WIC program is a nutrition program. We
provide nutritious foods and nutrition counseling and referrals to help, and other services
to our participants at no charge. We service low-income, pregnant women, postpartum,
breast-feeding women, and infants and children up to age 5 who have a nutritional need.
WIC is not a welfare program. It is a health program. . .short-term program designed to
help make healthy choices that will last a lifetime. Enlace Hispano provides Spanish
interpretation, translation services to the Hispanic community with limited English
proficiency. Enlace Hispano provides community outreach services to the Latino WIC
participants and to our Latino WIC eligibility population on the island of Maui. The
collaborative partnership between Enlace Hispano and the Maui WIC program have
increased access and utilization of nutrition and health care services by the Hispanic
community. The support from Enlace Hispano has contributed. . .contributed to the
improved efficiency of service, delivery, and has improved. . .oh--service, delivery, and
community. Sorry. Enlace Hispano reaches hundreds of people annually and was able to
hand out hundreds of pamphlets and brochures and make appropriate and timely referrals
to the Maui WIC program and to our community partners. The Maui WIC program of
the District Health Office of the State Department of Health respectfully offers our
support to Enlace Hispano. It will result in a significant long-term benefit to the people
of the County of Maui. Again, mahalo, muchos gracias to the Members of the Council
and to the citizens of Maui. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Edwin Ginoza...
. . . followed by Sonya Tremont.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Ginoza approached the mic.

MR. GINOZA: . . . Aloha. Thank you for letting me testify. My name is Edwin Ginoza. I am a
member of the Hui Malama. . .Learning Center of the Board of Directors. And I am also
the Program Chair for Hui Malama Learning Center.
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. . . I have. . .personal. . .experience dealing with Hui Malama. A long time ago, we had
adopted a daughter and as a high school student, she dropped out as a junior and she was
one of those that wasn't that she wasn't bright, wasn't that she. . .couldn't do the work, it
was that she didn't fit into. . .the box, as we would call it. She was one of those who
couldn't handle the situation at school. Once we got her out of there, then she was fine.
And she went to Hui Malama to pick up her GED. The better part of it is when she was a
senior, I offered her opportunity to go to college. And she did. She got a degree in
Chemistry. And today, she is happily married and. . .she's done fine. And. . .but one of
the things about Hui Malama, I think, is that we look at the public schools, private
schools and they do service a lot of people, but. . .as a former teacher, I also found that
they can't provide all the services to all of the people. And so a place like Hui Malama
services those kids who necessarily don't work out in the public schools. And it's, I
think, really important that we service these people. Because without Hui Malama, a lot
of these kids would go to the wayside, would never have an opportunity. But I also think
sometimes you know when kids don't go to school and we miss those opportunities, we
also find that . . .
. . . people who a lot of times don't fit into the mold or don't fit the norm are also the
most creative ones. They're the ones who often come up with solutions. A case in point,
I've also dealt with a lot of kids who's gone to schools like MIT, and one of the questions
that the application or the recommendation asks for is not how hard the kid worked or
how brilliant that child was but the question they asked was how is that child different.
Because. . .from experience what they found is those students who are different are the
ones who can think out of the box and come up with solutions. And I believe that at Hui
Malama we provide those opportunities for kids who don't necessarily fit the mold. And
I hope Council will continue to fund Hui Malama. We're hoping to expand our program
and make some changes which hopefully will better serve the community. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, again, for being here. Sandra Tremont, followed by
Bud Pikrone.
MS. TREMONT: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the Finance Committee. My name is
Sunny, and I'm speaking to you tonight on behalf of the Keiki Kokua, a nonprofit
organization, a foundation for the support of our foster children here on Maui. When I
think it's, it's funny when I think of the word "foundation". I instantly visualize in my
mind, the beginning of something being constructed. In this case, I see a road that is
slowly being constructed and rerouted. This road is being travelled by our foster children
here on Maui. The road they travel is in bad shape and often these children fall through
the cracks and the holes in these roads, which lead them to their destination in life. The
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foster care system has to be repaved and rerouted. It has been neglected and abused for
so long, and we've lost so many children on these roads. I see each of you sitting here as
our foundation. The one, you are the ones with our fmancial resources for the
reconstruction of the roads that they will walk. I see Keiki Kokua as the laborers who
work 365 days a year, and all over time, day and night, repairing the cracks and willing
up the hole so our children can walk safely with their heads held high, knowing that their
road will lead them without fail to where they need to go. Without each of you, this
foundation cannot be laid solid. So on behalf of Keiki Kokua and all of our foster
children here on Maui, we thank you for your passion and support. We hope you
continue to provide us with the tools we need to see all our children to the end of their
road called "destiny". You are our foundation, and we will continue to put our labor into
Keiki Kokua. After all, we reap what we sow. And one day, we can all look back and
see the fruits of our labor. Although our--and I know, I'm almost fmished
.. .(laughter). . . Although. . .our budget was cut a little bit, from 5, we. . .from 25,000
to. . .20,000, the road that these children travel is very expensive to repair. But I do
believe our children are priceless . . .(end of tape, start 2A). . . any more. And my
grandmother used to say if you really wanna know, want some to know who you are, let
`em meet your friends. So on behalf of me, myself, and Keiki Kokua, we're glad to let
you all be our friends. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --thank you again. Bob Pikrone. . .followed by Curt Leonard.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Pikrone approached the mic.

MR. PIKRONE: . . . Good afternoon, Chair. . .Commission [sic] members. My name is
Bud Pikrone, and I'm here tonight on behalf of the Maui County Fire and. . .Public Safety
Commission.
. . . We're all aware of the tough times we're in now, and. . .as Councilmember Baisa
said, the tough times that we face ahead.
. . . You, the County Administration, and the Departments of this County face some
pretty tough times and tough decisions. And we all know that. And so we have to look,
and each of the Departments have to look at the value of what they have and what they
can do. When we think of value of a well-staffed and -trained Fire Department, we need

- 28 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 31, 2009 (South Maui District)

only look at the beautiful green fields and mountainsides to realize in a few months they
will become fuel. . .for what we come to expect almost every summer on these islands.
. . . Here in Kihei. . .we realized last year that it doesn't just occur on the West Maui
mountains. And it get very, it can get very serious here and threaten homes also.
. . . The Department must always be at its best even in the tough times. This past year,
the Department under its new leadership, began preparing itself for these times by
stepping up its maintenance programs, working with the legislative body of the State to
reduce fire risk--among other programs and cuts. They have also done an excellent job of
preparing their budget to meet the fmancial concerns of the County, yet maintain the
necessary programs and personnel to protect us. Although there will always be a need for
new facilities and new equipment--that we know that we need here on these islands--this
Department has taken the message to heart and brought you a budget that reflects the
needs of this County today and for the next year in these tough times. The men and
women of this Department take an oath to protect the people of Maui County. We
appreciate your consideration of their efforts as you review the Budget before you.
Thank you for your dedication to this process.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Members, any questions for Bud Pikrone?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .seeing none. . .we had the Fire Department this morning, and
they did very well. Um. . .all of the needs that. . .has been required by the Department,
you know, we all took heart in regards to making sure that public safety is one of our top
priorities. Thank you.
MR. PIKRONE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next. . .testifier is Curt Leonard. . .followed by Dale. . .Netz.
MR. LEONARD: . . . Hello and good evening, County Council Members. My name is Curt
Leonard, I work for a company called Oceanit at the Tech Park. And I'm here this
evening on behalf of the Maui Economic Development Board. Heard some. . .some very
compelling stories about people struggling with the economy. And Oceanit has been not
immune from that. Recently, we had some reduction in workforce. And certainly, it
certainly. . .is difficult for all of us. It's during these hard times that organizations like
the MEDB really provide a lot of value to what it is we're trying to do in Maui County.
There's. . .there's a couple of things that, that come to mind. When MEDB was formed
more than 25 years ago, you know part of its mission or its primary mission was to
diversify Maui County. And then at the sector or the tech sector that I represent. . .back
then was just a blimp on the radar. Today, we're ten-fold larger because of it and we've
done, you know, just that one sector has certainly diversified Maui County. . .economy.
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But. . .the MEDB is very proactive about looking forward. And in looking at other
organizations, looking at other type of . .economies that can come here that are aligned
. . .(inaudible). . . Focus Maui Nui. And I think a good example of that is the, the
alternative energy that the MEDB has been working actually with you folks and the State
and actually national organizations to bring things like that here to diversify Maui
County. And there's others, but that's just one example. And the second thing I, I'd like
to point out is the, the workforce development that MEDB has been engaged in. And
there's, there's many, too many different programs and projects to, to name, but one thing
I can tell you is specific to Oceanit. Now, during our, our, our. . .highest staff level,
mid-40s, and now we're about mid-30s. But I counted 'em this morning, and there's 13
staff that we hired as a direct result of some of . .of the programs and the projects that the
MEDB is engaged. And that's important both in hard times and in good times. In hard
times, the MEDB supports a lot of the community that are, you know, our constituents
and, and. . .and those in Maui County. And during the good times, obviously, companies
are trying to leverage that. So these are just two things that I think are important,
especially reflecting on the current times we're in. And I would just respectfully ask that
you certainly look at what their fmancial requirements are in the upcoming year, and that
you make every effort to meet those needs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Dale Netzy [sic] . . .followed by Kathleen Mumford.
MR. NETZ: . . . Good evening and aloha. My name is Dale Netz, and I am Director of
Customer Service for the Maui Humane Society. I would like to thank
Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council Members for this opportunity to provide testimony
and to also thank you for your past support. Our staff has worked very hard to earn your
present support as well. This testimony is a request that the Council keep the amount
currently allotted in the Mayor's proposed Budget--1,480,249 dollars. The 4.3 percent
decrease was submitted and represents a significant shelter-encompassing attempt to
cooperate to trim expenses without layoffs or negatively impacting present and
anticipated programs and services. With an average intake of over 10,000 animals
annually, 210 animals at the shelter at any given day, and an average of 27 new animals
each day, you can imagine the ongoing dedication of our staff and the tools needed to
address the needs of the community and the animals. With a staff of approximately 40
paid employees and access to approximately 75 volunteers, the demands of care are huge.
Our economy has created an environment of need. . .not only for people, but for animals
that are being surrendered after years of being members of a family pack. We are the
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seven-day-a-week access and assumed solution for both. Our working days provide
comfort, compassion, education, and solutions for both humans and all the creatures
brought to us for care. Our front office receives an average of 60 to 90 calls a day, and
our animal control officers respond to an average of 27 calls a day covering the entire
island, including 24/7 emergency on-call services. Extended efforts within our
capabilities have been extended to the community for personal assists. Our dependability
on well-maintained vehicles and tools is crucial--not only for meeting the needs of the
community, but for safety as well. I am proud to be affiliated with the Maui Humane
Society. We have strong leadership, great goals and challenges ahead, and a staff that is
committed and prepared to serve our animals and the community. And we thank you for
your support and your time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much.
. . . Kathleen Mumford. And, Members. . .Kathleen will be our last testifier. . .not this
evening. We're gonna take a break as soon as you're done. We'll take a ten-minute
recess as soon as Kathleen is done with her testifying. Go ahead, Kathleen.
MS. MUMFORD: Hi, I'm Kathleen Mumford, and I'm an instructor at the Maui Community
College in the Nursing Department. And I'm here to thank you for all of your support
for. . .all of the monies that have been given to the Nursing Department as my two other
co-instructors had mentioned earlier about some of the positions that are funded through
monies that come from the County. I also wanted to say that we are concerned about the
tax dollars that may not be coming to Maui in the near future, and just to remind the
Council of . xight now in these hard times, we've heard tonight many speakers talking
about the loss of their jobs and. . .lack of . .support for them and their families and such.
And nursing is one of the fields that is going to be growing and is continually growing.
And we are providing. . .high-quality nursing staff for all of Maui. Probably only about
less than five nursing graduates per year will go to either Oahu or to the mainland. All
the rest of our graduates stay here on Maui to take care of our. . .seniors and
our. . .children and whoever might need health care here. So. . .we just wanted to say that
this is a opportunity for many people to shift in their careers. We have a lot of people
coming to the college now to get into nursing. And we're really grateful for that. And so
we just wanted to stress that the monies are needed and we'll be providing jobs for many
people. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Ladies and gentlemen-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Committee will be taking a ten-minute break and we'll reconvene
at about 7:30. This meeting is in recess . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

7:18 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:32 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Thank you, people, for . . .(laughter). . . giving us the opportunity to take a
ten-minute break. The next testifier this evening is Gail Raikes. . .followed by
Darryl Banks.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Raikes approached the mic.

MS. RAIKES: . . . Good evening, Honorable Budget and Finance Committee Chair Pontanilla,
Vice Chair Mateo, and Maui County Council members. My name is Gail Raikes. And I
am the Maui County Director for the American Red Cross. On behalf of our branch
chapter and the people of our community, I would like to thank you for your support of
our disaster preparedness and response program in the County's Fiscal Year 2009
Budget. The American Red Cross is a humanitarian organization of which approximately
96 percent of the workforce is made up of volunteers. Our mission is to prevent and
alleviate human suffering by helping people to prepare for and respond to emergencies
and to provide disaster relief to the people of Hawaii. We are the only organization
mandated by Congress to respond to disasters and provide emergency communication to
military families, and the only local nonprofit organization that meets the needs of
disaster victims any time of day, 365 days a year. At this time, I would like to read
written testimony provided by one of our partners, Dr. Lorrin Pang, Maui District Health
Officer. His testimony speaks to one of the many partnerships we have in our
community.
. . . Dear Honorable Joseph Pontanilla, Vice Chair Danny A. Mateo, and Maui County
Council Members, the Red Cross plays a key role in times of disaster and frees up our
staff to focus on more health-related tasks. Often, the issues are so intertwined--say, a
disease outbreak in a disaster shelter--that we must work collaboratively as well. In our
disaster preparedness plans, there are Red Cross volunteers who have agreed to work
with our medical response team in the event that Red Cross is not activated. Examples of
this scenario are mass vaccine or drug prophylaxis administration. Another example
might be house-to-house search for cases similar to what was done during the Dengue
outbreak on Maui in 2001. Whatever the scenario, Red Cross volunteers are a flexible,
adaptable, and dedicated resource providing front-line response. The Red Cross is not a
government agency and must rely on the generosity of Hawaii's people and other grants
to provide critical services to the community. Continued receipt of funds from the
County will enable the Red Cross to continue and expand disaster response, training of
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volunteer responders, and sharing of critical preparedness information on the islands of
Lanai, Maui, and Molokai. Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony, and I
humbly request continued funding for the Red Cross in the Fiscal Year 2010. Sincerely,
Lorrin W. Pang, M.D., M.P.H, Maui District Health Officer.
. . . Please remember a disaster or emergency can strike at any moment without notice,
affecting one person or our entire community. Your support enables us to increase and
fortify our disaster response and preparedness services Countywide. Thank you for the
opportunity to provide testimony, and I humbly request continued funding in the Fiscal
Year 2010. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you-MS. RAIKES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for being here. Darryl Banks, followed by Susan Seibert.
MR. BANKS: Aloha, Council Members and Chairman. Darryl Banks representing Big
Brothers/Big Sisters of Maui. I'm here tonight to thank you for your past support and ask
for your continued support in funding, budgeting for the prevention-based agency. Big
Brothers/Big Sisters of Maui is a mentoring program that positively affects young people.
We are an organization of staff and volunteers who are committed to assisting youth
achieve their potential. Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Maui offers positive broad-based
programs that focus less on specific problems after they occur and more on meeting
youth's most basic development needs. It's our unique approach to youth development.
Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Maui provides the only professionally supported one-to-one
mentoring programs on Maui. Children are faced with many potential problems,
including substance abuse, educational failure, school truancy, and juvenile delinquency.
Programs are needed that focus on children's basic development needs to help them build
confidence, self esteem, and a foundation for a successful life. The following
local. . .statistics demonstrates the need for programs that help youth build
self-confidence and prevent their initiation involvement in at-risk behavior. Big
Brothers/Big Sister of Maui surveys and independent research has proven that children in
our program are 46 percent less likely to do drugs; 27 percent less likely to drink, and
one-third less likely to commit an act of violence. The trend is toward substance abuse
starts early. . .with nearly half the children in Hawaii 12 years and older reported using
alcohol in the past 30 days. By the age of 13, over one-fourth of high school students in
Hawaii had used alcohol--the same proportion as those who had smoked cigarettes, and
more than twice those who reported using marijuana.
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. . . The longitudinal dropout rate for Maui's County school district is 9.6 percent.
Dropouts from the class of 2008 will cost Hawaii almost 1.4 billion dollars in lost wages
over their lifetime. The Maui Police Department reported an increase in arrests of youth
for violent crimes from 2008 to 2009, and 6 percent increase in arrest for youth for
property crimes. Maui County's total index property crime rates were the highest in the
State of Hawaii. The Maui County gang unit activity monitors over 15 gangs currently.
A total of 56,411 indexed crimes in Hawaii reported in 2007 and there were, 29.6 percent
were juvenile arrests. We just ask for your continued support in this. . .prevention-based
agency.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Susan Seibert...
. . . followed by Margie Dela Cruz.
MS. SEIBERT: Aloha. And thank you for allowing me to have testimony. I'm Aunty Sooz.
I'm the Tutor/Teacher at Kihei Youth, and I'm asking for your continued support of a
very, very important program. I know that you all saw the kids that were here earlier.
And those are the kids that I work with every day. Not only are we parting. . .being
partners with families and with the kids, but the schools right across the street. We
support our teachers. Primarily--I'm gonna keep this real short because the gentleman
ahead of me covered all the bases. It's one, two, three. First and foremost, after school
programs keep children of all ages safe and out of trouble. We have increased safety.
Two, reduce risk taking and improve learning. That's my job. And I am privileged and
honored every day to work with these kids. Please don't cut. . .continue your funding and
support of Kihei Youth Center. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Seeing none . . .(laughter). . . thank you very much.
Margie Dela Cruz, followed by Donna Delharo.
MS. DELA CRUZ: . . . Good evening, Members of the Maui County Council. My name is
Margie Dela Cruz. I'm. . .I'm speaking on behalf of Maui Adult Day Care Centers and
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also MEO transportation. We would like to thank you and the County of Maui for all the
support you have provided Maui Adult Day Care Centers. As you are aware, Maui Adult
Day Care Centers help to keep the frail elderly individuals at home for longer period of
time, preventing premature admission to a nursing home. In addition to our regular
program, we also provide services to families by providing the Sundowning program and
the Saturday respite program. We also have the high-functioning inter-generational
program that we started two years ago at the Nisei Memorial Center. Not only do we
provide care for our clients, we also address the needs of families and caregivers by
providing six monthly caregiver support groups, quarterly workshops, and counseling.
With this in mind, we are asking you to please support our line item appropriation. With
the help of . .with the help of the County, we are better able to keep the cost to our
clients and their families affordable and provide quality care. I would also like to thank
the MEO transportation for all that they do to support our elderly and disabled in the
community. Thanks to MEO transportation for the professional way they accommodate
30 percent of our clients with limited capacities. MEO provides transportation for our
clients to and from day care, and also they provide two excursions a month. . .for all our
three locations. And MEO transportation provides a safe, efficient, and dependable
transportation system in our community. Please make sure that you provide fmancial
support to continue this excellent service. Thank you for all your support and your kind
consideration and assistance with Maui Adult Day Care Center and MEO transportation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
MS. DELA CRUZ: Thanks.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Donna Delharo. . .followed by Gloria Chee.
MS. DELHARO: Hi, thank you so much for having us here. I'd like to thank you guys for all
the organizations that MEO is going through with all of us. The rental agreement, I just
recently lost my job with Home Depot and didn't know which way to go. So I went to
them and they helped me out with everything that I needed. They've helped me out in
the past ten years. And they're just a really good organization to work. They're just
there for the keikis and they're there for the families who need it. And I just wanna thank
you for your time . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gloria Chee. . .followed by Alda St. James.
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NOTE: Pause while Ms. Chee approached the mic.

MS. CHEE: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Gloria, and I'm here on behalf
of the Youth Center. Um. . .your grant to the Kihei Youth Center has allowed by son and
many other children of South Maui to have a safe and nurturing place to be after school
and during the breaks. The children are the future. So I would like to say thank you for
supporting the Kihei Youth Center and your continued support is needed. I would also
like to thank MEO for providing transportation. . .from the schools to the youth center.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for being here.
MS. CHEE: Uh-huh.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Ah . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Alda St. James, followed by Linda Cunningham.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. St. James approached the mic.

MS. ST. JAMES: . . . Good evening, Council Members. Tonight, I'd like to share with you
specific ways your support has helped Keiki Kokua serve the community through our
thrift store. First, Family Court has a community service sentencing program for
juveniles. We are honored to have been asked to provide a worksite for some of these
youth to work off their community service requirements. Second, the Department of
Public Safety has a community service component for adults having noncriminal and
nondrug-related violations. So far, two of our volunteers are working under this program.
Third, Job Corps would like to bring some of their business students to volunteer at the
store. This program is not begun yet, but it is in the works. As we gain more experience
with these programs, more creative ways to promote the social welfare will present
themselves. Some ideas we are considering are have a Foster Parent Day at the store
with specials just for them. We could do the same for foster youth, that would be really
fun. Another idea is host a foster parent recruitment event by inviting the appropriate
agencies to set up informational booths. This will allow them to explain to the public the
different recruitment programs that are available in Maui County. These are just some of
the ideas that we can implement to promote public awareness and encourage community
support through donations, volunteerism, and most importantly through foster parenting.
In this way, Keiki Kokua will continue to be a positive force in the community. Thank
you, once again, for your support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair And thank you, Alda, for being
here again. I wanted to ask you 'cause I, we're seeing you frequently and I keep
forgetting to ask you. You always mention the foster parent program and recruiting for
foster parents. Can you tell us what the need is? I mean, are there waiting lists, children
that need foster parents? How, how big, how bad?
MS. ST. JAMES: Yes, there are always waiting lists because there's certainly special needs
children--as you saw tonight with Chris--that not just any parent can handle. And they
require special training. They require continued encouragement. They
require. . .immediate. . .help when, when something comes up. So basically there's
always a waiting list for that kind of parent. There are other parents that can take more
manageable children. Younger children are usually less difficult than older ones. But
there's always that problem of behaviors. As I think Jim said at the last hearing. . .you
remember there were in one week three incidences that were quite scary for the foster
parents that they had to handle.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So there's a continuing need and you're always recruiting?
MS. ST. JAMES: We're always recruiting. We're always looking for dedicated families.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MS. ST. JAMES: Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again. Linda Cunningham-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Gary Frampton.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Cunningham approached the mic.

MS. CUNNINGHAM: . . . Good evening. My name is Linda Cunningham, and I am the Office
Manager at Hui Malama Learning Center. I am the first person--one of my job
responsibilities is answering the phone. Most of the calls I receive are from parents who
are desperate. Most of them are at the end of their ropes trying to find a program for their
child because for whatever reason the child is not able to function in a regular school
environment. After I go over our academic program with them, I also give them hope
that at Hui Malama we will make a difference in the life of their child. And it's very
rewarding to see these children come back after they've received their GED and they
share their stories with us in the office, the teacher. And they're proud of themselves.
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And several students have come to me and said you didn't give up on us, Hui Malama
was there for us. And these are, they go on and they go to Maui Community school
for. . .Maui Community College, I'm sorry. And. . .just to see the happiness and the
pride they have in themselves after being able. . .that somebody has been there for them.
So on behalf of Hui Malama, I would like to thank you for your past support. . .and for
your continued funding for our program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gary Frampton, followed by Brad MacArthur.
MR. FRAMPTON: . . . Good evening, board members. . .Council Members, excuse me.
. . . I was the founding father of Big Brothers in 1971. And I guess I did such a poor job
that they demoted me to be on the Board of Directors now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. FRAMPTON: And so I'm here to speak to. . .for, for the agency as a member of the board.
Put on my glasses.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
NOTE: Pause.

MR. FRAMPTON: . . . Thank you all. . .for making the progress possible for Big Brothers and
Big Sisters . . .
. . . and for making it possible for us to serve West, South, East. . .including Hana. . .and
all the island. Now even more, now Molokai and Lanai. You have made it possible for,
for. . .professionally supportive volunteers to provide friendship to low-income and
single. . .single-parentage children.
. . . The
of friendship is really very potent. I often reflect on what friendship has
done for me in my life.
. . . First of all, it braces me up for the trials and tribulations of life I have to face.
Secondly, friendships improves my self-confidence.
. . . And friendships help me to face life, period. Friendships. . .friendships just plain
make me feel. . .a better person. If we as adults can recognize the value of, of friendship,
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think of how meaningful it must be to a child. . .trying to grow up into an adult world and
figure life out. Thanks very much for your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again.
. . . Brad MacArthur, followed by Don Couch.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. MacArthur approached the mic.

MR. MacARTHUR: . . . Good evening, Council Members . . .(end of tape, start 2B). . . as a
board member for Hui Malama Learning Center in Wailuku.
. . . And I just wanted to come here this evening to voice my support for additional
funding for Hui Malama Learning Center. I serve on the board with Hui Malama now for
seven years. And I find it to be an outstanding organization that serves a great need for
our community. You've heard from a couple of members of our organization this
evening. Another board member, Ed Ginoza, who's served with the DOE for a number
of years; and then also Linda who's come out this evening to voice her support. And,
you know, I just wanted to say a couple of things about the organization. I've been on
board with them for seven years. And I've seen some good times with them, and they've
gone through some bad times. I've seen three executive directors there, and they really
have, have done a great job in, in building support for the organization. Right now,
there's a lot of good energy that the executive director has brought to the table there.
We've got an outstanding board of directors that have really offered a lot of new
energy. . .a diverse group of individuals from attorneys to educators to people that
have. . .have gone through the program at Hui Malama, so they're alumnus. So a real
good group of people there. But most importantly, the, the people that the organization
serves are people that aren't necessarily what we call "traditional students" or people that
fit in in a traditional role in high school or, or in other. . .other areas. So. . .by way of
providing an opportunity for them to get their GED or learn English as a second
language, it really fits a need that I don't think is all. . .always. . .always out there in other
organizations to be fulfilled. So with that being said, I just wanted to again voice our
support for, for Hui Malama. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Don Couch, followed by Stephen West.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Couch approached the mic.

MR. COUCH: . . . Aloha, Council Members. My name is Don Couch, and I'm here to talk
about the Kihei Greenway. The idea for the Kihei Greenway goes back to the beginning
of the Piilani Village development right over here in the 1980s when Haleakala Ranch
President, Peter Baldwin, pushed the concept as integral to the community's future.
. . .(cleared throat). . . Excuse me. Since then, the development into Central Kihei was
always supposed to include the greenway. State Representative Joe Bertram spent
decades promoting the project and getting it included very firmly into the Kihei
Community Plan. The project was, was supported by Mayors Lingle, Apana, Arakawa,
and Tavares. Despite that, the Public Works Department has always found ways to avoid
building it. And on its southern side, they even gave away some of its right of way. The
Department has always tied the bikeway to the development of the North-South Collector
Road.
. . . But that project got lost in a debate of building the road either two lanes or four lanes.
That debate is still going on. That impasse is now over ten years old and not likely
to. . .be resolved any time soon. So if the greenway is going to be. . .built, it must be
separated from the roadway project and built as a standalone project. The right of way
from Waipuilani to Auhana is clear and uncontroversial. We even had a groundbreaking
in 2006 to start the project.
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. COUCH: Yeah . . .(laughter). . . So here's my suggestion--that the County start building
the project, and if need be, use County funds alone, as opposed to State and Federal
funds. If you commit to build a half-a-mile a year, in about three years, that portion of
the route connecting many residential neighborhoods, this one and all the way down to
Auhana. . .to the schools would be built. The key point is it must be separated from the
North-South Collector Road project. The greenway has been heard to be called the
forgotten promise. We spend an enormous amount of energy making plans. How about
implementing them? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Stephen West, followed by
Bob Richardson.
MR. WEST: . . . Aloha, Council Members.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
MR. WEST: Stephen West, International Longshore Warehouse Union. Um. . .I'm here to talk
about a couple of things. One is the funding for the MVB. Um. . .we are. . .in the midst
of . .I think our second economic tsunami. You know, we've been hit by one and
there's another one that's coming. We're gonna be facing, just in this month, almost 100
employees being laid off at one hotel. Um. . .my point is, is if we don't compete for the
smaller pool. . .the smaller pool of visitors out there. . .it's gonna be bad for all of us,
including the nonprofits because if we don't get revenues into this island, the revenues
out to the nonprofits are, are gonna. . .be even less next year. So I, I ask that you do not
cut. I ask that you actually fund more and add accountability to it. Um. . .it's extremely
important. We, we've seen, we're seeing many social and economic. . .problems. MEO
is, is doing a tremendous job. Kihei Youth Center, they're, they're helping us
tremendous, us tremendously. And not only "us", but the community. It's, it's
important that. . .early childhood development programs continue because there are many
social problems at home because moms and dads are having a hard time paying their
bills. And it's. . .we're seeing a lot of problems. So I just ask you . . . (sigh). . . to not cut.
Um. . .especially these programs for kids. Because they're the ones right now that are
really suffering. And the last thing we want is when these children grow up. . .to be
more, to be a problem. So . . .
. . . thank you for your time. I appreciate your, all your hard work you're gonna have to
do because this is not gonna be an easy job. I. . .hope. . .that you could even look
into. . .something like you did in 2001 when we had the. . .9/11, where you guys went out
and you I think funded 1.5 million. . .had MEO administrate, administer that so. . .people
could pay their electric bills, people could go to Costco or wherever and, and buy food.
Because right now, it's a desperate need out there. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. West?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Bob Richardson, followed by
Lilla Monaghan.
MR. RICHARDSON: . . . Aloha. Thank you for your time and thank you for the opportunity to
speak to you tonight. My name is Bob Richardson, I work with the Kihei Community
Association. And I'd like to speak to you for a moment about the Community Work Day
program and the great job that they do for our community. If it was not for the efforts of
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the Community Work Day program, a lot of the greening projects and cleaning projects
that we do in Kihei could not occur. I know that this is the only organization that we
partner with that I keep all of their cell phone numbers right in my pocket all the time. If
we have a situation that occurs in Kihei that we need a cleanup effort that's too big for us
to handle with the Kihei Community Association, then we call the. . .the. . .uh . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Community Work Day.
MR. RICHARDSON: . . . Community Work Day.
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. RICHARDSON: And they do a great job. So thank you very much. Appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (laughter). . . Thank you, Bob.
MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Lilla Monghan. . .followed by Rudy Ayers.
MS. MONAGHAN: good evening, my name is Lilla Monaghan. And I'm here to. . .ask you to
give support to MEO. I, they helped me out last year in December. . .I am a single mom
with an 11-year-old daughter. And I was. . .I have, was given three-day notice out of a
house that went into foreclosure. And I didn't have a place to go, so they helped me out
find housing and move on with my life and my daughter. So thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Ruby Ayers?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Joe Bertram had to leave.
. . . Susan Wyche?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Whche approached the mic.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Followed by Kathy Wong.
MS. WYCHE: . . . Aloha, Budget Chairman and Council Members. My name is Susan Wyche,
and I'm here to speak on behalf of the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. I moved to Maui
nearly two years ago from California where I specialized in sustainable landscape design,
including the use of native plants. When I came to Maui, it was obvious even to me, to
my newcomer's eye that few residential and commercial landscapes use Native Hawaiian
plants. I turned to the Maui Nui Botanical Garden to educate myself and to find sources
for Native Hawaiian plants. I discovered that the, that your central botanical gardens are
sadly in need of renovation. But I also discovered a rich resource of loyal, hard-working
staff who are actively promoting, protecting, and propagating Maui's natural treasures.
Um. . .Lisa Raymond, I walked in to ask for her assistance, I walked out a volunteer. So
. . .(laughter). . . I can speak to that personally. Your proposed cut of 25,000 dollars
would impact basic staffing for them and cannot easily be replaced with grant funding or
private donations even if they could be found at this late date. I know that you have
many hard decisions ahead of you. And many of them are about sustaining basic human
needs. I respect those needs and I respect you for making tough decisions. But the
legacy of this land is in your hands because it is only through education of the public that
our native plants will fmd protection in the wild and new places in our landscape. Please
consider this in you deliberations. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Kathy Wong, followed by. . .Paul Mark.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Wong approached the mic.

MS. WONG: . . . Aloha, my name is Kathy Wong, and I'm a volunteer at Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens. I appreciate and recognize the value and importance of the work that Maui Nui
Botanical Gardens provides to our community. The Gardens promotes Native Hawaiian
plants, provides educational resources; partners with a number of government and private
organizations on endangered species preservation; water conservation; and supports
critical endangered species conservation efforts through propagation, seed banking, and
outplanting. In addition, it supports job training and community volunteer opportunities
for youth and people of all ages and physical abilities. One of the best things about the
Gardens is the diversity of the individuals who come to visit. This location is the
landmark for many, a special place for residents like myself who've come for
years--dating back to when it was the Maui County Zoo. Years ago, I'd bring my
preschool-aged children to meet friends, have a picnic lunch, and let the kids play. Now,
it is still a destination for families to come and relax while their children play on the
playground, farmers looking for rare and unavailable taro and banana plants, home
gardeners seeking plants such as noni for healing and mamaki for tea, local residents
interested in learning how to Xeriscape and save water in their yards, visitors and
part-time residents who appreciate the unique place to come and enjoy a quite time and
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appreciate native plants. „just to name a few. So much of our island has changed over
the years due to development, economic. . .environmental changes, and water restrictions.
I respectfully request that during these difficult economic times, the Council consider the
benefit of this self-contained and maintained contribution to our community. It is
clean. . .free. . .and a safe place to visit. Please restore the 25,000 dollars that was cut
from the preliminary budget for Maui Nui Botanical Gardens so that it continue to be
Maui's only endangered. . .not "endangered", but educational center focusing on
conservation of coastal and dry forest. . .species and a special destination.
. . . Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you very much. Mark, uh, Paul Mark...
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . followed by Susanne Smith.
MASTER MARK, FROM THE AUDIENCE: You rock, Dad!
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. P. MARK: . . . That's my son over there. My name is Paul Mark, and I'm. . .here this
evening to speak on behalf of Best Buddies as a board member and as a parent of a child
who benefits from that program. Um. . .we made Maui our permanent residence this year
from. . .graduated from part-time residents to full-time residents 'cause we felt that Maui
would be a great place to raise our son that has. . .who has Down Syndrome. And. . .the
Best Buddies program. . .which has been around for four decades now. . .and has just
started here in Maui has been an integral part in helping my son. . .assimilate and make
friends within the community. His best buddy. . .calls him. . .has made him feel very
comfortable, has increased his confidence, and has helped introduce him to other people
throughout the community, and participates in different activities. So I'm here tonight to
ask you to continue to support the program so that . . .
. . . Mike can continue as the Director and give him the opportunity to continue this
program that just got started and is doing a lot of benefit for the community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you again. Susanne Smith-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Jon Miller.
MS. SMITH: Aloha, Council Members-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hi.
MS. SMITH: --and thank you for allowing me this time for my personal testimony in my
situation. I most recently got connected with the Maui Economic Opportunity through
rental assistance. The dynamics of my immediate family had changed quite quickly and I
was faced with a situation where financially I had just changed positions in my career and
I wasn't able to complete my obligations for housing. And I am a single parent. . .single
parent of three teenaged children. So to be faced with a situation where I've always
considered myself strong and viable even as a single parent because I have taken
initiative and I do have accountability towards providing for your family, I truly was
faced with a situation where I could not provide for them a home.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Smith regained her composure.

MS. SMITH: . . . I think right now, the gentleman that had spoke earlier. . .my background says
to me at a time like this people are in extremely .. .
. . . somehow we have to come together and we cannot cut. This is where you actually
have to pull everything that you have inside you and ask for more. And you have to
say. . .we need help. People need help. We need the basic assistance.
. . . We don't necessarily--I wasn't in a situation where I needed clothing. . .where I
needed furnishings. Because, to me, those are already tangible goods that when it's said
and done, those tangible goods don't really move you forward. What moves your
forward is a roof over your head and the security of the roof over your head, and the
nutrition and the food to put in to create the viability.
. . . And I, I beg and somehow I would like to. . .I am a single parent, I work 40 hours a
week, but I still could find some time to give back and to assist. If even I as a community
member can assist somewhere to help tap into the resources that are out there for bigger
granting. . .then I would assist in doing that. And I think we all need to bind together as a
community and really, really, really reach out and, and really come back to what truly is
important. And I just personally feel that without George and Gerry and the section of
MEO that has assisted me--and also with my child who uses the transportation to go back
and forth to her extracurricular activities that were given to her as part of a nonprofit
organization. . .to sustain some stability. And in my immediate situation, I just truly,
honestly. . .my children would have suffered even more than they already have coming
from a single-parent household. So I truly ask just for you guys to fully--it's hard work
and, and I thank you all for what you do do. And I bet each and every day it probably
tasks you and weighs you down on how, where do you choose what really is the area that

- 45 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 31, 2009 (South Maui District)

we need to help in. And I just ask that you don't cut with the, with the children
programs, that you don't cut with the food programs, and you don't cut with the rental
assistance programs because we truly need them.
. . . Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. . . Jon Miller, I think he left.
Stella Rivers. . .followed by Michael McCormick.

Tony Fisher left.

MS. RIVERS: . . . Aloha. Thanks for being here tonight. I'm Stella Rivers. I'm the
Co-Director of the Maui Film Festival. And I'm here to just thank you so much for your
continued help. . .with our Maui Film Festival at Wailea. During the nine years that the
festival has received support from the County of Maui, the Maui Film Festival has
diligently worked to generate more than 21/2 billion media impressions worldwide. Please
look at the sponsors page in the program event guide from last year that's in front of
you--and it's tabbed with like a little yellow tab--to see the. . .many sponsors and
supporters that are with us. The Maui Film Festival has provided more than 250,000
dollars in complimentary admissions to thousands of Maui keiki, kupuna, and youth
center members, and many others throughout the community We continue to stick to our
philosophy of bringing life-affirming films that matter. And believe that film can change
a community for the better.
. . . Over the past nine years, we have spent more than 21/2 million dollars on the
personnel and infrastructure needs of the Maui Film Festival at Wailea--most of which
stays on Maui to help diversify our economy and provide meaningful and rewarding
work for our fellow Maui citizens. We also. . .are the major, if not. . .we also are a major,
if not the major user of the Maui Arts and Cultural Center and rent it 85 nights a
year. . .which adds up to about 100,000 dollars to use their facilities--for our First Light
Christmas Film Festival, the Wednesday films, and the week. . .we also use the Arts
Center for our films as part of the Film Festival for Wailea. Last, but not least,
Charmaine, being a previous projectionist years and years ago has always supported us.
A special thank you to her. Also to Benita Brazier, the Film Commissioner, who is just a
pleasure to work with. Also Deidre Tegarden, Coordinator of Office of Economic
Development. And also to Jeanne Skogs [sic] of the MEDB. . .and
Nancy Bulosan Marvin and Pam Dunsin for serving as the fiscal managers of the County
and State funding for the Maui Film Festival at Wailea, and for their collective, and your
collective faith in the Maui Film Festival as we head into tour 10 th annual year. Again,
thank you for your support. It's deeply appreciated and important to the health of the
Maui Film Festival . . . (inaudible). . . the community. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Michael McCormick, followed by
Kimo K.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. McCormick approached the mic.

MR. McCORMICK: . . . Aloha, Council Members, Council Chair, Budget Chair Pontanilla, and
other Budget Committee members. My name is Mike McCormick, and I'm the State
Director of a new program here on Maui called Best Buddies. It's appropriate to be here
tonight. And I thank you for the honor--recently, the Council honored Best Buddies with
a resolution honoring Best Buddies and the month of March as Best Buddies Month here
on Maui. Right now, March is Best Buddies Month worldwide. So we're really happy to
really be honored here on the island of Maui. The last year has been a real whirlwind for
me getting this program started here on the island. And the. . .response has been
overwhelming. It's very difficult. . .to get this program and all the pieces into place in a
very short period of time. We've been operational now for nine months. We originally
targeted about 100 student volunteers, and right now we're approaching 170 volunteers
with our latest school that's just joined, Lokelani. „Intermediate, right down the street.
And they're very excited--Principal Donna Whitford and. . .their special ed department.
Other members in the community may not know what Best Buddies is, but it's basically a
mentoring program and a one-to-one friendship of matching up a student in special ed
with an intellectual disability with a student in general ed. And all I can say is that we
need your support to keep this program going. We've had a substantial budget cut in the
Mayor's Budget this year. We'll make do with that. I hope that we can get the funding
that's on the line item right now. And we'll hope that as the economy recovers, that that
funding can be restored. In the meantime, we'll work harder. We currently. . .started
also one other program. It's called E-Buddies. For a lot of parents whose children are out
of school, it's a program where if they have on-line. . .we have thousands of volunteers
nationwide that are looking to be a friend with someone with an intellectual disability.
So I'm implementing that program at the. . .Easter Seals, Ka Lima 0 Maui, at the ARC of
Maui, and other places here on the island that really deal with people that have
intellectual disabilities. So thanks again for your time and please. . .find a way to give us
your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kimo K?
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MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Good evening, Council members. And thank you for coming to South
Maui, Kihei. My name is Kimokeo Kapahulehua. I'm the President of the Kihei Youth
Center here in our community. I wanted to tell you that. . .last year. . .um. . .the total
budget was 1.8 . . .
. . . 1.8 million dollars for all the youth centers. This, this coming 20. . .on 2010, you cut
us back to. . .1,740,000. . .60,000 dollars less. I know you need to. . .cut because we have
some hard times. So one of the, one of the things I wanna let you know, that. . .and let's
not only speak for our kids here in South Maui. I speak for all the kids in the County of
Maui, including Molokai and Lanai. With that said, I would like for you to make sure
that when you cut this thing in the youth centers, in our budget, that you take a look at
our places like Molokai and Lanai and Hana. If you're gonna take a cut, we prefer you
look at the cut in these other areas that I didn't mention. And please because these guys
are out in the boonies, they're not able to do the things that we could do close to Kahului,
Wailuku, South Maui, or Lahaina. So be really, really careful in making sure that
Molokai, Lanai, and Hana people get protected, our kids, because they're way out there
and they're not close to that. So I wanted to tell you that it's our responsibility as a
community, yeah . . .(Hawaiian). . . the Hawaiians say--every child in the County is our
responsibility to take of that. So I wanna leave that with you tonight. And thank you for
all the things that you guys try to do in this trial times. And I wanna tell you that I'm
coming to you Friday because last year was our 25 th Anniversary for the Kihei Youth
Center. And this year will be our 26 th . So we have been in partners with you for that
long. And this Friday you'll have on your agenda for a 20-year lease granting to us, the
Kihei Youth Center. So we, we, look forward for another 25 year being partnership and
making it the 50 th Anniversary down the line as a youth center. So as a partnership, we
come this far and we've made it through real bad times and real good times. And I know
that we're gonna make it through the other times that's coming. So I thank you again
this, this evening for coming. And I know that there you have a lot on your plate, but
particularly paying attention to the youth of all of Maui, the County of Maui. And so,
please, if you're gonna cut make sure Molokai, Lanai, and Hana still get carried on
because it's tough for them to do things that we can do in South Maui, West Maui, and
other places. So mahalo. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Kimo K?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much and thank you for reminding us.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .Patsy Pitts?
. . . Followed by Thomas. . .Cody?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Pitts approached the mic.

MS. PITTS: . . . Hi. I wanna thank you for funding the Maui County Farm Bureau in the past. I
warma thank Councilmember Pontanilla. . .Pontanilla for explaining to me this process.
I'm kind of a newbie at this. My name is Patsy Pitts. And you have a bit of paper on
your desk that comes from me. And. . .last, I wanna thank you making a change on it.
I'm not gonna read it because we're all tired and you can read it. . .at home, tomorrow, or
something. But. . .at the very bottom, would you take your pen and put a, cross out "this
group" . . .(laughter). . . because I didn't know who I was representing, and now I do.
I'm, I'm representing and I'm asking you to fund the Maui County Farm Bureau line.
. . . I'm know I'm confusing you. Sorry, Councilmember Nishiki . . .(laughter). . . you're
looking at me like I'm nuts-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
MS. PITTS: --but I did never done this before . . . (laughter).. .
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. PITTS: And. . .so it's, I represent, I'm a coffee farmer. So, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you . . .(laughter). . . Members, any questions for the
testifier?
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um. . .oh, thank you, Tom, you write just like a doctor.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. CROLY: . . .(laughter). . . Thank you . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tom, go ahead.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 31, 2009 (South Maui District)

MR. CROLY: I am Thomas Croly. And. . .I, I just have to say it's humbling to sit here and
listen to all the people looking after their kuleanas and, and coming to you with hands out
to, to help them continue the good work that they're doing on Maui. And I certainly hope
that everyone can, can continue to do that, but I know you're faced with difficult choices
here. Um. . .my kuleana is the bed and breakfast thing. You guys know me from that.
And, and the written testimony that I just gave you is a, is kind of an update as to where
the permitting process that we, that we recently passed has gone. And also a bit of a
reminder that the Budget Committee still has to deal with the issue of the property taxes
for the folks in B&B...
. . . side of things. So I'm not gonna take your time up tonight, but I ask you to read over
the, the written testimony that, that, that I've given you there. And when this issue comes
up in the Budget Committee, we'll. . .we'll discuss it further. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tom. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank
you. Abdalla. . .Smeida, Sumida? Abdalla?
. . . A, B, D, A, L, L, A?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Not here?
. . . Edward Davis?
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Davis approached the mic.

MR. DAVIS: . . . Hi, I'm Edward Davis from Trex Enterprises, a high-tech company here on
Maui. And I'm here to testify on behalf of the Maui Economic Development Board. We
have about 25 people working here on Maui for us. And the Maui Economic
Development Board helped us. . .in, in the past, even before I, I, I was here, but certainly
in the past three years that I have been here on, on the island. They've helped us pursue a
variety of business, including high-tech development . . .(end of tape, start 3A).. .
Honolulu. They wrote a letter of recommendation for us that actually led to 127,000
dollars worth of business for us already, which translates, then, into a couple of jobs here
on Maui. And there's a potential to, to lead to further, 250,000 dollars worth of business
for us which could, could very well translate in, into more jobs if that comes through.
They've helped us meet with potential customers, including the ones I've mentioned.
They have a Tech Ohana program that has allowed me to, to present the work that, that
we do at our business, as well as interact with leaders from other businesses on, on the
island. . .and potentially lead to, to partnerships and further work with them. We
sincerely appreciate the, the support from, from them that's of course made, made
possible in part by, by the help that you give to the Maui Economic Development Board.
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So we very much hope that you continue to, to fund and support them. And. . .I thank
you for the opportunity to testify before you tonight.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MR. DAVIS: Great, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sandra Akina, followed by . . .
. . . Francheska Bucknell.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Akina approached the mic.

MS. AKINA: . . . Aloha, Council Members. My name is Sandra Akina.
. . . And I'm the owner of Akina Aloha Tours and Akina Bus Service. I'm here because
of a safety concern that a few of us in Kihei have been working--well, not just "Kihei",
but a few of us have been working on for the last 31/2 years. So I provided my testimony,
but I'd like to read it anyway.
. . . Since August 2005, concerned citizens, police officers of Kihei, and several Public
Works employees have been trying to get the County to budget monies to fix Kanani
Road so it is safe. Presently, my buses have not been allowed to use Kanani Road due to
the hazardous conditions. My concern was and still is the safety of my buses and my
community. The following is a snapshot of our past efforts so you will be able to
comprehend how frustrating it has been to work so hard and not reach our fmal goal after
three years. One, we started out by meeting with Mr. Fasi of the Planning Department,
then we me with Mike Miyamoto and Nestor at Public Works. Secondly, we enlisted
Officer Hinkle's help and the Police Department to obtain statistics of the accidents and
cite. . .citations of the area. Number three, we went on to testify at the Planning
Commission regarding the Betsill/Chris Hart project to be sure that they were committed
to widening Auhana Road and putting in the required infrastructures, and also completing
the design of Kanani Road before they built their proposed project, Kalama Heights
Phase II. Number four, we wrote letters and made numerous phone calls regarding the
nonexisting exit lane off of Piilani onto Kanani Road, which creates an unsafe condition
for large equipment and cars trying to exit. Five, we invited
Councilmember Michelle Anderson to observe drivers as they made their
Hollywood-stops at Kanani stop sign and cut across the on-coming car lane to make a
right turn onto Kanani Road from Auhana Road. Every year, we asked her to request
monies for Kanani Road's improvements from the County budget, but she was never
successful. Six, we also involved Representative Bertram in our efforts. Seventh, last
month when I read Mayor Charmaine Tavares' article about the stimulus funding, I wrote
a letter asking that Kanani Road be identified as one of her "80 Ready to Go
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Infrastructure Projects". Thus, you can see, we've expand, expended many hours toward
trying to improve Kanaki Road, but today we have reached a frustration point because it
is not included in this year's Budget. The hang up seems to be-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, complete.
MS. AKINA: Okay. The hang up seems to be Betsill. . .Betsill Contractor's engineering
department has not completed the design of Kanani Road. This requirement is a
condition for their SMA for their Kalama Height Phase II project. My thought tonight is
that we are at a critical point, and I don't believe that we can wait any longer for a
developer to complete the Kanani Road design. Today, I would like to request that the
County execute the design and get the Kanani Road project completed as soon as possible
so it is safe for my buses and my community. In closing, I would like to affirm that we
should count our blessings that there has never been a tragic accident attributable to the
present hazardous conditions of the Kanani Road. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you again.
MS. AKINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, Members-AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Staff will provide copies of her testimony to the Committee.
Francheska Bucknell. . .followed by Mr. and Mrs. Scott Borges.
NOTE: Very long pause while Ms. Bucknell approached the mic.

MS. BUCKNELL: . . . Hi, I'm Francheska Bucknell. And this is Scott Borges. We just going
do 'em together.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. BUCKNELL: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. BORGES: Hi. I just here to thank MEO for the support they gave me and my family. . .to,
to have a place to live and shelter and. . .it's hard on Maui. And then I was planning to
moving to the mainland where it's cheaper, but. . .I guess. . .and MEO had go and give
me one second chance to go and stay on the island and try to. . .try to extend my family.
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And I'm. . .I'm born and raised on the island and. . .I'm just grateful that. . .and you guys
are there to help local people and people in need that, and don't have the funds to. . .have
a place to stay. I just wanna say thank you guys, and thank George from MEO, and thank
all you guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers? If not, thank
you again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chris Brosius. . .followed by Julia Ustich.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Brosius approached the mic.

MR. BROSIUS: . . . Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for your time. My name is
Chris Brosius, and I'm the Coordinator of the West Maui Mountains Watershed
Partnership. Our organization was formed in '98, and the landowners. . .comprised the
landowners within the forest reserve of West Maui. It includes eight public and private
landowners--of which the County is one with 2,000 acres in North Waihee. Our mission
is to protect and preserve the Native Hawaiian forest which provides us all with many
eco-system services, including 30 billion gallon. . .gallons of water annually. This water
helps to supply 80 percent of DWS consumers on the island of Maui. It is appropriate
that I am here today in Kihei because water from . . .(inaudible). . . does come from the
West Maui Watershed to not only. . .support West and Central Maui, but also North to
Paia and South to Makena. We're currently employing a staff of eight to help
landowners manage nearly 50,000 acres of these watershed lands. We're supported by
grants and in-kind services provided by landowners, Federal, State, County, and local
government. . .and other private grants. But I'm here today to ask you for your continued
support for the OED earmark of 100,000 going to my partnership, and 500,000 for the
five Maui Nui watershed partnerships, as well as DWS funding. I believe there's
95,000--that's a 5,000 cut from the year before from. . .DWS. In short, this money helps
us manage many forest threats--weeds, dirt bikes, invasive species, pigs, goats, deer,
forest disease, work on fire issues as well. We have tried to maximize every penny and
to apply it to the most pressing of these issues. This has resulted in, now, an 18,000-acre
area of land that's under active management, 13 miles of fences, thousands of
species.. .invasive species removed. We're trying to do more by adopting new
technologies like. . .high-resolution, multispectural imagery that'll help us target weeds
from. . .as, as opposed to craning your neck out of the helicopter and saying "what's that
down there?". Um. . .and we're compiling all this information in databases to allow us to
manage and learn from our management well into the future. We are. . .professionals
doing the best that we can to manage a mountain of problems. Um. . .we are engaged in
public education. We just started a new interpretive hike program to get people out there
seeing these issues and learning about them. We're.. .we've also. . .you know,
developed a new website, brochures, tangible materials. And right now, just like
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everybody else unfortunately, we need your help more than ever. But I just wanted to let
you know what our situation is by saying that next year we're gonna lose a minimum of
60 percent of the funds that we normally get from DLNR. That represents a 220,000
dollar cut to my program if that comes to fruition. Um. . .if the transit [sic] tax goes
away-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BROSIUS: I just need 30 more seconds. Um. . .then that OED funds, you know, that
disappears. . .then we're down a lot more. And ultimately, that compromises our ability
to get matching Federal funds in. And I'm working my. . .excuse me, tush off to try to
get grants from every place that I can. But these are biological issues that reproduce
and. . .you know, without managing them, we're gonna lose the ground that we've
gained. I'd like to thank you for your support. I hope that I can continue to receive it for
the betterment of the watershed for our watershed resources on Maui. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, just a comment.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, let, let me finish my comment first? Um. . .myself and
Member Victorino. . .you know, we were in Washington, D.C. about two-and-a-half
weeks ago, and Senator Inouye had earmarked some monies for watershed protection
here in Maui County. But I don't know if it's West Maui or East Maui. But there is
money that was set aside by Senator Inouye. . .Inouye for watershed protection.
MR. BROSIUS: Yeah. If I may? I believe that might be for areas like the Lahaina Flood
Control Project that are more like CIP projects. A lot of times we do hear a lot in the
news about funding watershed management. But it, it's more directed towards the lower
lands which are important, but don't necessary help programs like mine But I will be
looking for any money that's . . . (laughter). . . available.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I, I'll go take a look and then I'll provide you some information.
MR. BROSIUS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Uh. . .Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. You said that your program
is expected to be cut by 220,000 in the next fiscal year?
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MR. BROSIUS: Yes. I believe that's correct. That's my. . .most, well, it's a rough projection.
DLNR did budget a 60 percent cut for watershed partnership funding Statewide.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And those are all General Fund monies?
MR. BROSIUS: That. . .those funds originate from the Natural Area Reserve Fund, which is
also being looked at as well as the TAT to help offset . . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Offset-MR. BROSIUS: . . . losses in the General Fund. So . . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. No, I, I just wanna tell you that we
should all be supporting your continued work because after all the watershed is our, is our
drinking water. So we'll look for ways, at least I will and then I hope that the, the
Council will try to find ways to support you. Over and above that, then, if the Chair can
find other resources of funding that are Federal, then we will try our best.
MR. BROSIUS: Thank you very much. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Marshall Gallen. . .Gallen? Oh, I'm sorry,
it's Julia. . .Ustich.
. . . You're not Julia.
MS. SKOG: . . .(laughter). . .
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Followed by Marshall Gallen.
MS. SKOG: Good evening, Council Members, Council. . .uh, Budget Committee Chair Yes,
I'm not Julia . . . (laughter). . . Julia did show up tonight and realizing what number she
was, she cannot drive at night, so as, in appreciation for her showing up and providing
testimony, I thought I'd read it to. Just a little bit of preface to this. . .obviously MEDB is
about strengthening, diverse, diversifying the economy. And within that mission, we also
work to and share the Maui Farm Bureau's goal of sustaining ag, agriculture.
About. . .two years ago, the Maui Farm Bureau asked us to partner with them to apply
our strengths in education and training to their Ag In The Classroom program. And since
then, the program has trained 50 teachers in professional development workshops, which
they got professional development credit for. And those credits go toward increasing
their opportunities for salary advancement. We've reached over 500 students through
this program as well. It's. . .personally it's very exciting to me. I grew up on a pineapple
farm. And that was just such a wonderful life. And I really am very personally invested
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in ag being sustained in our community. So Julia was one of the teachers that
participated in this program. And she's a great teacher. She's a health and agriculture
teacher. And this is what she wrote. Urn. . .hi, my name is Julia Ustich. I teach at
Baldwin High School since 1995. I am testifying for the Women In Technology
program. I took an agriculture class via Women In Technology to better inform the
students at Baldwin High School. I contacted Isla Young who referred me to
Erin Okazaki--both of them work for MEDB--who in turn contacted Gerry Ross from
Kupa'a Farms. Ultimately, we had a PowerPoint presentation in the multi-purpose
building in which I invited various classes. Gerry and Erin informed 320 students over
two periods how the life cycle of soil is developed, how there are good and bad bugs,
how many years it takes to create soils, and how chemicals affect the soils and the land.
Women In Technology also offers paid internships, opportunities in technology and
agriculture, as well as field trips and classes. And then she goes on to ask for your
support in the Women In Tech program. And I personally ask for your support going
forward as well as for the Maui Farm Bureau. It's been a great partnership. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Thank you, again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Marshall Gallen-MR. GALLEN: Gallen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Gallen, followed by J. P. Thoma.
MR. GALLEN: . . . Hey, aloha, thank you so much for this opportunity. I've actually rewritten
this thing about eight times while I was here trying to make sure-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. GALLEN: --I said the right thing. I'm here to speak on behalf of the Maui Visitors
Bureau, obviously funding for that program, we feel, is very important. I personally
work a the Westin Maui Resort and Spa. And I, you know, I can speak, speak on this
matter for 20 minutes and it probably wouldn't do justice to the scope of what Maui
Visitors Bureau really does for the community. Urn. . .as we know, Maui Visitors
Bureau. . .their efforts directly affect thousands of jobs on the island of Maui. They bring
millions of visitors to the island, thus producing thousands of jobs and
supporting. . .many of those who, who live here. Personally I love my job. I love what I,
I do. I work with hundreds of people that wake up in the morning and feel the same way
and, and are excited to work. But we need those visitors to come to the island for us to
go to work. Urn. . .and, and just simply the, the financial flow-through to, to every one in

- 56 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 31, 2009 (South Maui District)

the industry and beyond, those who support those who work in that industry is, is
instrumental to our future. And you know in terms of the Westin Maui Resort and Spa,
our commitment to marketing efforts. . .you know, like many businesses right now that
are watching their costs. . .and we certainly have. . .one thing that we haven't actually
decreased--in fact, we've actually increased--is the spending and marketing. Going to
the mainland, we now have representatives on the mainland working specifically for not
only the islands of . .of Hawaii, but Maui and, and certainly the Westin, we're trying to
bring visitors here to have that face-to-face contact that we truly, truly feel is so
important. So again, asking for your support for the Maui Visitors Bureau. And thank
you so much for this opportunity. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you again. J. P. Thoma?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Donnie Becker?
. . . Donnie Becker?
. . . Followed by Tammy McMullen.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Becker approached the mic.

MR. BECKER: . . . Good evening, Honorable Council Members. Um. . .thank you for being
here this late, by the way, it's getting really late. I'd like to shed some more light on a
dangerous road condition that Sandra Akina just mentioned. Um. . .over the past few
years, there's been a lot of concerned local residences [sicJ--KCA included, which I was
a board member for about three years, working of areas of Kihei that, that I think are
needing to be. . fixed in regards to dangerous road conditions. I've worked with the
Police Department. And the condition on Kanani Road is such that the road was
originally designed in the '70s. And it was actually not even a through road to Piilani
Highway until they decided to connect it. That road is the original road, and it's still to
this day, is in the same condition that it was in the '70s--where they didn't have
a. . Araffic signal and they didn't have the amount of traffic that is using it. I don't know
if you've all driven on Piilani Highway and you turn on Kanani. It's a rutted, curvy road
that actually leads into an off-angled stop sign that. . .as she mentioned nobody stops at.
And so it's really confusing for people who live in that exact area because nobody knows
who's in control and who's got the right-of-way. The County actually owns all the
property in that intersection to actually do the work that's needed to design a new road.
We've been waiting for Chris Hart and Associates' project--Phase II of Kalama Heights
Retirement Home--to actually be built. And because of the economy, they, they've
changed their mind of when they possibly will even begin construction. So we testified
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in the Planning Commission to. . .to force them, actually, put back into the community a,
a safe condition leading to and from their development. They agreed to do this. The
holdup three years ago was that they agreed to do it, but they have done any
development. So we're at a standstill when it comes to the money that was originally
agreed upon and funded for designing the road. Once the design is done, then the County
can know how much it would cost to actually fix the road, do the development of the
road. So what I'm asking the, the Council Members to do--which I've been working with
Wayne Nishiki and Sarah very adamantly helping us--to try to figure out which way to go
now. And what we've figured out is that Corporation Counsel should get involved and
actually possibly put a lien on the, on the developer's property so that at the time that
they will do this development, they will have an obligation that they've agreed to do and
we can actually get paid back. And the County would not actually be out of the funds
that, that we hope would be used for this design. So I'm here to, to really voice my
opinion. I'd like for you guys to drive down. I've talked to Mr. Victorino on this subject
and he's agreed that it is a dangerous road condition. The Police Department's totally
involved with, you know, not knowing what to do or how to control it. And I think it's
time that we finally, after three years of waiting, I think it's time that you know we, we
know it's a very important intersection to Kihei. It's probably one of the most
well-traveled roads that is original. Thank you, again, for all your time and appreciate it.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, I, I just get one question. So the dangerous part of the road. . .is at the
intersection of Piilani and Kanani Road?
MR. BECKER: What's happening is the State, which owns the Highway, is actually going
to. . .in the letters and documents I, I've sent to you, Mr. Cajigal, who's the State
representative for, for Maui, he stated the following. And that is that. . .I'll read exactly
what he wrote. That...
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Becker reviewed his notes.

MR. BECKER: . . . I think I gave you guys that paper. Um. . .that they are gonna do widening
of . .oh, here it is. As we discussed before, it will be included in this year's project. We
hope to have a bid out by June of this year, 2009, best guess at this time. Construction
starts in two or three months thereafter. So the State already knows that that's a really
important turn lane to get, you know, to get it done. And we're hoping the County will
now take the ball and connect it to that road.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BECKER: All right. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(cleared throat). . . Tammy McMullen?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Jennifer Rappaneck. . .Rappanecker?
. . . Followed by Vincent Mina.
MS. RAPPENECKER: . . . Good evening. Jennifer Rappenecker, I'm here tonight representing
the Maui Humane Society. I serve on the board of the Maui Humane Society, and
wanted to thank you for your service. Um. . .also wanted to thank you for the partnership
that we've successfully had in the past between the Maui Humane Society and the
County where we provide the animal control services for the County. And I just wanted
to share a personal story that. . .I experienced in the last two weeks here in Kihei when I
was. . .just dropped my son off at school, was taking a left-hand turn on Piilani Highway
in the morning. And one of the intersections where there's not a stop light, so waiting for
the traffic, and two very happy dogs come bounding. . .out of a yard and in front of my
car in between traffic and start to head down the road. You could see one had a collar
and was clearly a pet. And unfortunately these dogs were not at all scared of traffic. And
so you know my heart stopped. You can see the cars on Piilani Highway start to slow
down and give room. And fortunately I have Humane Society on my cell phone, so
called them right away, got animal control to head right over. And I think of animal
control kind of like 911 where. . .you know it's good idea, but if you've ever actually
dialed the number yourself, you, you have a whole `nother appreciation for the service.
So I just appreciate it personally how I got to experience it as a, as a community member
to not only rescue the two dogs but also help with the traffic issue that was being caused.
So anyway, just wanted to ask you for your continued support so that we can continue to
fulfill our obligations of the animal control in Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Vincent Mina. . .Kahanulani, Kahanulani Mina, and Jim Hall.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Mina and Miss Mina approached the mic.

MR. MINA: . . . Aloha, aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. MINA: These. . .that's my daughter, Kahanulani. She's the instigator for our family farm.
When, when my wife was pregnant with Kahanu, she was craving these sunflower
greens. And I wanted to farm and didn't have land or equipment. And she said, here,
dad, I'll show you the way--from inside the womb. And so we are fortunate to be able to
have a family farm. As a matter of fact, Kahanu, come here, please, and tell the Council
Members about the farm for a second, what, how, what it means to you.
NOTE: Pause.

MISS MINA:

. . . Well.. .our family farm is. . .very beneficial, it's like incredible

. . . (laughter). . . towards our family and the community. And. . .um . . .

. . . it's so amazing. It's helped us so much with our family and with everything.
And. . .I'm sorry, I just get nervous. I'm sorry . . . (laughter).. .
. . . Um. . .it .. .
. . . gives me so much opportunities. It helps me . . .
NOTE: Pause.

MR. MINA: . . .(inaudible). . . you to save money . . .(inaudible). . .
MISS MINA: I saved money for my bathing suit class. I'm taking these bathing suit lessons to
learn how to make bathing suits and such. And it's really helping me. And so I get that
opportunity. And I also have the opportunity to learn about business and such. And also
to spend quality time with the family. That's really what matters . . . (laughter).. .
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MINA: . . . The. . .um. . .you know, I wanted, I wanted Hanu to. . .to share that from, from
her experience because of the importance of what our family farm means to us.
And. . .and through the efforts of, of, of . . .
. . . just the results we've gotten from our farm, we've been able to go out and develop a
nonprofit organization, Maui Aloha Aina Association. And that's why I'm here tonight
to also, to thank you for your support. Through Office of Economic
Development--Deidre over here--and Mayor Tavares seeing agriculture as being such a
big part of what's needed here on the island. And through the Farm Bureau we get our
grant. I notice there is some cut in the Farm Bureau's budget this year and that'll be
passed on to us commodity groups. And I'm looking for more money. We wanna do
more educational outreach. And the National Farmers Union has come on board in
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support of what we want to do. Where's Jim? Could, Jim, could you please give the
Members that don't have . . .
. . . I visited with a few of you so far and gave you this information. These are letters of
support from the Farmers Union and, and Tri-Isle RC&D. My wife pointed out the other
day, I thought something was really interesting. In the word "sustainability", it's a
worldwide term, yeah, sustainability. We've been hearing it over and over again. And
yet right smack. . .dab in the middle of the word sustainability is the word "aina". So
here's a Hawaiian concept in the middle of a term that's used, used worldwide. And so
it's true, in sustainability it's about us, our ability to feed the land, being . . .
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. MINA: . . . our ability to aloha the aina. So that's what Maui Aloha Aina is about. We,
our mission is to promote life nurturing practices for the body and the soul through
education and outreach. And the lady that was sitting here earlier that came to tears when
she shared from her heart from her experience MEO, she spoke about having a roof over
her head and nutrition for the children. And you know, that's where a lot of our problems
are in this day and age--is the lack of nutrition our children are getting. . .too much sugar
and not enough nutrient density and minerals in their food. So the only way to get that,
from my experience--you know, Kahanulani, when she was born, she was 8 pounds,
8 ounces, born at home, has not been immunized. And to me is the picture of health as
far as, you know, how, how she brings fevers on and within 24 hours they're gone. You
know, she has the perfect composting system going on-MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. MINA: --in her body. So this is really, these are really nice concepts that support
everybody's health and well-being. And our family, we, we just wanna share that out in
the community So thank you so much. You're all invited to our conference. . .in, in past
years, so please come this. . .this next year, it's gonna be in March. So thanks a lot for all
your support. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier other than thank
you for the vegetables . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER

: . . . (laughter).. .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, again. Monica Kelsey?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Followed by Jeff Reiss.

- 61 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 31, 2009 (South Maui District)

MS. KELSEY: Aloha. My name is Monica Kelsey, and I'm here tonight to offer support for the
excellent work done by the Maui Economic Development Board . . . (end of tape, start
3B). . . small businesses like ours on Maui. I'm the Executive Assistant at HNU
Photonics, a small but growing business in Wailuku that's involved in optical engineering
and manufacturing. Also, we have a subsidiary company, HNU Energy, an alternative
energy solutions provider. Our business growth in the last couple years has been assisted
in so many positive ways with the help from involved people like Leslie Wilkins and
Jeanne Skog working at MEDB. Their network of business relationships supported our
science and technology company with their programs. . .such as Women In Technology;
Maui Akamai Internship program; the AMOS, Advanced Maui Optical and Space
Surveillance Technology Conference; Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day; The
High-Technology Job Fair; and the Kamaaina Come Home program--all of these
programs we have participated in. These vital programs for our community and Maui
families are important work and they do exactly what is necessary right now for the
challenges that we face in keeping our workforce here on Maui.
. . . Each of these programs target specific workforce development. Not one of them
should be cut. I hope that the Council reconsiders their budgets and. . .maybe contributes
some more . . . (laughter). . . But thank you for listening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Next to testify is Jeff Reiss-AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez.
MR. REISS: . . . Good evening. Thanks very much for coming out here. My name is Jeff Reiss,
I'm the CEO of a high-tech company here on Maui named Peletex. We were established
in the year 2000. So. . .we've actually been working for more than 10 years. And I'm
here to talk on behalf of Maui Economic Development Board. We've got a lot of support
from Maui Economic Development Board. And in the business that we're in, which
is. . .developing new technology, it's. . .a long-term payoff. And for our
company. . .we're in a excellent position. So the good times are coming our way because
we have an environmental technology that will clean the air and smoke stacks around the
world. We have two U.S. patents that have already been issued. We have patents that
are pending in Europe and additional new patents that are pending. And. . .it's a global
economy. And I'd like you to consider that the investment in Maui Economic
Development Board is an investment in a future that will bring income to Maui County.
With the support. . .from Maui Economic Development Board, we're able to secure
two . . .
. . . contracts that amounted to more than half-a-million dollars. We have two employees.
And when we have funding, then we can bring in consultants. . .and spread the money
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around. Additionally, we're a qualified high-technology business. We've raised over
11/2 million dollars from investors in the company. And currently, we have a proposal
that's being considered by the Illinois Clean Coal Institute. So. . .Maui Economic
Development Board helps to leverage funds that will come in from other places for the
benefit of Maui and they supported our company. And I believe that we will be very
successful and a, a credit to Maui County and continue to provide more jobs for the
future. So please. . .consider investment in MEDB as an investment in the, the future.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
MR. REISS: And one other quick comment. I've been over to Honolulu a number of times and,
and MEDB is a class act, and they represent Maui very well in Honolulu. So-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Blackburn-Rodriguez approached the mic.

MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: . . . Good. . .good evening and thank you very much or
coming to South Maui. My name is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez.
And. . .Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Budget Finance Committee, again,
thank you for being here this evening. I, I wanted to address. . .one question this evening.
And it really has to do with just the huge challenge that you have. And I have so much
respect for the fact that you've taken this on on our behalf--that you ran for these offices
and that you asked for this job. And we wanna thank you very much for being our
representatives and taking on this tough work.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you.
. . . I believe that the Affordable Housing Fund, the set-aside, the 2 percent set aside by
the Charter amendment currently has 6.2 million dollars. . .in that fund. And that under
the current proposed budget, another 4 7 million will go into that fund for a total amount
of around 10.9 million and some change. About 10.9 million. And I know that there are
many. . .worthwhile projects that will be looked at in the, in the future, the near future
that we need to make certain there are funds for. But I would very respectfully like to
suggest to the Council that we look at this 10.9 million and avoid what the State
does--which is have money stuck in funds and different places for purposes that is not
being spent for. . .or was not allocated, was not hoped for. We have 10 9 million dollars,
and we have a huge need in this County for rental assistance. We have a huge need to
help people with their mortgage payments. We have a huge growing need, growing
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problem of homelessness in this County and here in, in South Maui. You know, we do
not have sufficient places for people to go during the day to wash their clothes, to make a
phone call, to get something to eat, you know to be safe. We don't have places where
people can sleep at night. Every year, we read one or two stories in the paper about a
woman who was raped, brutally beaten, people attacked under the trees. These are just
the tip of the iceberg of what happens at night in South Maui on the beaches, in the kiawe
trees, away from the highways. There are people working full-time who cannot afford a
home, a place to live. They live on the beach. I know a friend of mine who tells me
about a woman who works at the Queen Kaahumanu Shopping Center. . .comes to work a
little bit rumpled everyday because she's living in her car, but she's embarrassed and
doesn't wanna tell anyone. And I would respectfully suggest to the Council that you
revisit and look at the 10 9 million dollars that you have sitting on the table and ask
yourself, looking at the legal ramifications with counsel, with legal counsel, of course,
but look at how much of that money can be spent this year, now. . .to provide housing for
people. And that is, rental assistance. And I would respectfully suggest-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: --to you that you set aside a minimum of 1 million dollars
this year out of the 10.9 million, for rental assistance. Because that is a need for housing
that people have right now, tonight. Tonight, we'll go home--thank God we'll have a
place to go. Tomorrow we'll get up and we'll take a hot shower. But there will be
hundreds of people here who do not have those very basic human rights. So, again,
respectfully in conclusion, I ask that the Council seriously examine the possibility of
taking at least 1 million dollars out of the 10 9 million in the Charter fund and putting it
towards housing assistance--and that is, rental assistance for the people of Maui County
at this particularly tough time. And this recession has now gone on 17 months. Thank
you, again, for your work and, and bless you for all that you do for all of us. Thank you.
Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Rodriguez at this time?
. . . Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . Tom, I. . .thank you for coming tonight. As I mentioned
earlier, and I think we've heard it as the night progresses. . .and when we were on
Molokai, we had quite a few people to come and testify how they had been assisted by
the MEO rental assistance program. And. . .I'm sure that there are many, many others
but. . .for my, from my experience with the rental assistance fund, it's rather sparse.
And I think that MEO has had to redesign it in order to give less money per person and
lessen the amount of time in order to make sure that it spreads around. So I think that
you know you bring up a very viable idea. And I don't know the legalities of it, I don't
know when the fund was set up--and it was set up for affordable housing--what
those. . .what that definition is or what the parameters of it are. But it's certainly sounds
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like a very viable alternative, a quick solution. Also because we have the providers
already doing rental assistance, I believe that there's several of them. Do you know who
they are?
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: There, there are, of course the Salvation Army has things,
there are other organizations. And MEO is an excellent example of, of what happens.
Yeah, then you're absolutely right, Councilmember Baisa, you already have an
infrastructure in place to deliver these funds quickly, efficiently in a timely manner to
people in need through a verification process that has served the County well. So this
would be a project that is ready to go. And that 1 million dollars is probably less than is
actually needed, but I do believe we have to be prudent with all of the funds that are in
the Charter amendment. And that's why I recommending just the 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for bringing this up tonight. I appreciate
it. I'm sure we'll all pay attention. Thank you.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you very much for coming to Kihei. Aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .the Chair is gonna allow . . .(laughter). . . Mr. McCormick
to. . .give one more testimony on another organization. And I, I'll give you one minute.
. . . Is there anyone out there that hasn't signed up for public testimony and would like to
provide public testimony? You can come up and, you know, see the people to my
left. . .at the end, and, and sign up. Thank you.
MR. McCORMICK: Yeah, aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. McCORMICK: Council Committee Chair Pontanilla, thank you. I know it's late. I just
wanted to say a word on behalf of the MEO transportation division. I have so many older
friends in the community, especially here in Kihei, that have really taken advantage of
that to go and do shopping and other things. And I also wanna thank them on one
occasion for getting our high school Best Buddies to an important trip that they all took
together. So once again, good consideration when it comes to spending funds for MEO.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Urn. . .that's it . . . (laughter). . . Is there anyone that wanna provide
public testimony that haven't signed up? This is your time.
NOTE: Pause while Staff conferred with Chair Pontanilla.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. I, I thought I called this, all three of them at one time.
Jim Hall, you wanna provide testimony?
MR. HALL, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yeah, . . . (inaudible).. .
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Hall approached the mic.

MR. HALL: . . . Urn. . .yeah, my name is Jim Hall. I grew up in Maui, in Haiku back when
Haiku was downtown with Haserot Cannery and Yamamura and the Gouveias
and. . .Andrades and Silvas and everybody. We were a community living there. I'm here
in support of Maui Aloha Aina and the family farm, really, because I grew up at a time
when everybody had a family farm. A dear friend of mine took his life and I went to his
services yesterday, and he grew up. . .that was my first impression of a family farm--his
father growing on the property, him taking care of the property after his father passed
away. And. . .it seemed like as we got further away from that type of community, that
type of raising our food, that type of sitting around the backyard and looking at people's
gardens and things that. . .a lot of people in Haiku that I grew up with went off to jail,
died, you know, a lot of things. Just, it just, the whole community kind of fell apart. And
I live in Kahului now, but I've got that opportunity with my kids and my grandkids that
have been born on Maui to do gardening. I was out at 10 o'clock last night planting
seeds in a bed that I made yesterday. My granddaughter, my grandson can spend time
out in the. . .in the corn and the peas and everything else I'm growing in Kahului. And
I'm no real farmer, but I've known Vince for 30 years and. . .it's only in the last few
years I've gotten involved with them. And I, I just see how. . .it's a really important
aspect for community And. . .I've kind of altered the saying, but it's, it's give. . .you
know. . .give a man a carrot, he'll eat today; teach him how to grow a. . .carrot bed and
him and his family will eat after. You know, so it's, it's, I think as far as supporting what
Vince does with Maui Aloha Aina, what we do, I guess, you know, in supporting people
to take care of the land, to give back to growing their food and everything, and
educating--it's primarily education that. . .you know, I just think that's an important area
to spend money and to spend a lot of focus on. And. . .I got more things I can talk about,
but it's late . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more. . .or any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you again.
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MR. HALL: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members. . .Mr. Hall was the last testifier this evening. Chair
would like to thank all of you for coming out tonight. . .for staying. . .sticking it out along
with the Committee.
...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Members, any announcements to make?
. . . No? Seeing none, this meeting is adjourned . . . (gavel).. .
AUDIENCE: . .(applause). . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: JJ and BKM)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 9:10 p.m.
APPROVED:
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